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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRRHE

Results & Financial performances EENPERR 2017 2016
Results E4
Revenue (HK dollar '000) WA(FETT) 1,860,900 1,626,611
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 72 B1#E A A FE(E 5 F

(HK dollar '000) (F&7T) 301,833 205,698
Basic earnings per share (HK dollar) HEAFZRRAFGET) 0.36 0.25
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents)  EZESRAREARE GBIL) 12.0 10.0
Gross profit margin S| 33.7% 28.1%
Net profit margin I 2 16.2% 12.6%
Return on equity (Note 1) AR E (ffaE1) 33.1% 30.0%
Return on assets (Note 2) BELORE(K72) 18.4% 14.7%
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) GFEBEEXE(HF3) 86 84
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 4) B 5 I I RE XS iE4) 50 45
Trade payable turnover days (Note 5) B 5 e SRIR RS R E(H7E5) 70 69
Financial position BIFEAR R
Net current assets (HK dollar '000) MEEEFE(TEL) 560,251 348,431
Current ratio (Note 6) BN R (M1 5E6) 187.2% 1562.2%
Quick ratio (Note 7) WENL K (H5E7) 139.6% 112.6%
Gearing ratio* (Note 8) BEBGEHE* (i 8) 10.7% 29.1%
Net gearing ratio (Note 9) FEEBELEAFI) 0% 0%

Notes:

(1)

Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(2)  Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and (2)
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(3) Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average balance of inventory (3)
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(4) Trade receivable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade (4)
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(5) Trade payable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade payables (5)
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(6) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and (6)
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(7)  Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current (7)
liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(8) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity and (8)
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(9) Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net borrowings (total borrowings (9)

net-off cash and pledged bank deposits) by total equity and multiplying the
resulting value by 100%. Net gearing ratio was zero as net cash of the Company
as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was HK$452,312,000 and
HK$299,258,000 respectively.

The decrease in gearing ratio was due to the decreased operating loan as a result
of sufficient fund flows of the Group as well as the increased equity as a result
of profits earned during the year.
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Financial Highlights (continued)
IEmE(E)

Five Year Revenue — by business segments

EERA—BEET
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Mold fabrication . Plastic components manufacturing . Total
RESUE IR RS 5

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TAT TAT FTAET TAET TR

Mold fabrication A RE 476,024 540,259 588,800 631,396 649,756
Plastic components SRR RS
manufacturing 721,828 798,661 1,017,405 995,215 1,211,144

Total st 1,197,852 1,338,920 1,606,205 1,626,611 | fiellii)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IRBESE

Li Pui Leung it R
Chairman /&
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “TK Group” or the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the "Year under
Review").

REVIEW

During the Year under Review, with the efforts of all staff and
business partners of the Group, the Group has achieved another
success for its annual results. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group's revenue amounted to HK$1,860.9 million (2016:
HK$1,626.6 million), and the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company exceeded HK$300 million, representing
an increase of 46.7% to approximately HK$301.8 million (2016:
HK$205.7 million) as compared to that of last year. The gross
profit margin and net profit margin were encouraging, rose by
5.6 percentage points and 3.6 percentage points to 33.7% and
16.2% (2016: 28.1% and 12.6%) respectively. Being as the
chairman of the Board, | am proud of the record high financial
results of TK Group, but more importantly, | am grateful for the
continuous trusts and supports from shareholders, customers, the
government, suppliers and vast media as well as the dedication
and efforts of TK Group's staff in the ever-changing business
environment for pursuing innovation and breakthrough and creating
infinite business opportunities for us. It is worthy to note that the
strength of TK Group has gained increasing recognition from the
market, making the Company's market value increased more than
double over the past year. | believe that these achievements relied
on the corporate culture of the TK Group, which always focuses on
developing and maintaining the sustainable and mutually beneficial
relationship with stakeholders, thereby creating value and making
contributing to the society.

Same as previous years, the Board of the Company for this year
continued to fulfill its commitment to distribute dividends not
less than 30% of its profit, and decided to increase the dividend
payout ratio for the year to 46.9% in light of the abundant cash and
pay a final dividend of HK12 cents, totaling HK17 cents together
with the interim dividend, to share the results and joy with the
shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FREREE(E)

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Being as one of the world’'s leading providers of one-stop
integrated plastics solutions in the world and one of the largest
suppliers of plastic mold in the PRC, the Group has been
committed to providing high quality and competitive products
to satisfy the demands for excellent quality from various
internationally known brands and becoming the closest and
most trustworthy business partners of new and high technology
customers. Our outstanding process technology also guaranteed
TK Group to achieve higher profitability than its peers. Leveraging
on its solid business foundation, TK Group will focus on the future,
step forward with a firm aim of becoming stronger and more
powerful, striving to enhance the operation size, expand regional
coverage and develop diversified product lines across industries by
organic growth and strategic mergers and acquisitions, in a bid to
achieve sustainable development and rapid growth of the Group.

The Group has accumulated and maintained a customer base in the
plastic mold industry for over 30 years and built up well-established
reputation and brand awareness among various internationally
known brands by cooperation, such that the Group constantly
attracted international known brands of customers goods who are
pursuing for high quality standard, which in turns laid down an
extensive customer base for the Group and reduce its reliance on
single industry. To improve its global sales footprints, the Group
is devoting more resources to the international sales business and
plans to establish a technology support center in North America
for more effective promotion of the dominant products of TK
Group and exploring the market of high technology and emerging
industries in North America. While developing new customers, the
Group also focuses on research and development, continues to
improve its existing competitive products and keeps encouraging
innovation, aiming to maintain the overwhelming advantages in
plastic mold manufacturing technology of TK Group and striving to
build a century-old mold brand with expertise.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

In 2017, along with the steady recovery of the global economy,
the market demands for new consumer electronics products kept
increasing and such trend continues in 2018. The high quality
production technology and keen insight on product trend of the
Group enable us to respond and satisfy the customers’ demands
for products with both functionality and design in a flexible and
prompt manner, thereby leading to a sufficient amount of orders
for the Group in 2018, in which three sectors (i.e. smart home,
medical and health care and mobile phones and wearable devices)
are expected to maintain strong growth momentum. To cope with
the increasing number of orders, the Group is actively looking
for suitable site in peripheral area of Shenzhen for our new plant
so as to expand production capacity. The Group also endeavors
to enhance the intellectualization of its production and operation
system to further improve product precision and production
capacity, as well as manage orders and enhance overall production
efficiency in a more efficient way.

TK Group has been stayed align with the latest technological
developments and at the same time, constantly seeking for
breakthroughs. In addition to strengthening the Group’s leading
position in plastic industrial chain, the Group is also committed
to investing in future technologies. The Group executed an
investment agreement on December 2017, of which we made
a strategic stake in Precision Robotics, a British medical robotic
surgery platform company. Such transaction has completed on
January 2018. Precision Robotics is a new spin off company
launched by Imperial College London. The Group believes that
through the investments in this project, it would not only foster the
high-tech start-ups with development potentials, but also broaden
the Group's brand awareness in health- and medical-related
sectors as well as expand its business networks, thereby exploring
wider business opportunities and potentials. Furthermore, we
continuously explore opportunities for targets and investment
projects for merges and acquisitions, actively seek for a potential
mergers and acquisitions target that have complementary and
synergistic advantages and can facilitate in expanding new market
and new customers, so as to further expand the Group's capacity,
geographical coverage and sales channels drive an overall growth
in our businesses.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FREREE(E)

CORPORATE CULTURE

In 2017, the Group’s financial condition and market value have
both achieved a great leap forward, and such outstanding results
were attributable to our leader’s value and the sound atmosphere
created by our staff. That is where TK Group's corporate culture
lies in. The Group has effective and supported corporate culture in
place. The “Fairness, Equality” culture system is the top principle
of our corporate culture, and supported by the Code of Integrity,
enabling us to achieve healthy development. Moreover, any office-
politics is prohibited within the Group, instead, every staff is
encouraged to be concentrated on the work itself so as to achieve
more fruitful results. Together with an established bottom-up
effective motivation mechanism, our staff may be more willing and
conscientiously protect the interests of the Group and interests of
their own, thereby enabling the Group to achieve sustainable and
stable growth in performance.

The Group has been pursuing its strategic development in a
practical, stable and sustainable manner. We are fully confident
in our strategies and implementation for the year of 2018. Our
management team and | will continue to lead TK Group to move
forward. We will spare no efforts to optimize internal resources
and enhance overall efficiency, aiming to build up the Group
to become a sustainable growth-oriented company, to achieve
growth in profit and create better returns for our shareholders and
staff.

APPRECIATION

Our past success and future achievements relied on the
continuous efforts and dedication of the management team and
staff of the Company, as well as the supports and trusts of all
shareholders and business partners. On behalf of the Board,
| would like to express my sincere gratitude to all staff and
management team for their professionalism and faithful services
and appreciation to our shareholders and business partners for
their long-term supports.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 12 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, the Group has again achieved spectacular results for
the year. During the Year under Review, amid the continuing
recovery among key economies in the world, market demands
have experienced gradual recovery, and especially the demands
for the emerging electronics have been increasing. Leveraging on
the diversified customer base as well as our devotion to the high-
quality and high-precision plastic molds, the Group has captured
the opportunities arising from the growing momentum of the
market. During the Year under Review, three major segments,
namely the smart home segment, the medical and health care
segment as well as the mobile phones and wearable devices
segment in the downstream industries have recorded a more
robust growth than last year. In 2017, the Group's revenue for
the year was HK$1,860.9 million (2016: HK$1,626.6 million),
representing an increase of 14.4% compared to that of the last
year.

Industry 2017
7%
HK$ million
BEER

Automobiles e

Mobile phones and FURAFERE
wearable devices

Commercial telecommunications  F @R

equipment
Medical and health care BEREAEE
Smart home BHRE
Household electrical appliances K&
Digital devices Y7k
Others Hih
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EEE2FWEA1,860.9BEEL(2016F &
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1,860.9 100.0

2016 Change
)

HKS million %  HK$ million %
BEAT % ABAT %
387.1 23.8 0.8 0.2
296.0 18.2 73.1 24.7
374.6 23.0 -15.3 -4.1
217.6 134 79.1 36.4
90.7 5.6 119.6 131.9
88.7 5.5 -14.9 -16.8
79.2 4.9 -9.3 -11.7
92.7 5.6 1.2 1.3
1,626.6 100.0 234.3 14.4
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEE R LT ()

Benefiting from the positive consumer sentiment, the considerable
amount of orders in 2017 has made the production line reach
its full capacity and significantly reduced the average production
unit cost. Meanwhile, the strict implementation on quality
enhancement within the Group was also proved effective, thereby
strengthening the awareness of quality enhancement and waste
reduction among departments, together with the continued
increase in production efficiency driving by the sustainable
development of smart production, the gross profit margin has had
a further increase. During the Year under Review, the Group's
gross profit increased to HK$627.0 million (2016: HK$456.5
million), representing an increase of 37.3% compared to that of
the last year; the gross profit margin increased to 33.7% (2016:
28.1%), representing a year-on-year growth of 5.6 percentage
points.

Taking into account the above factors, the Group recorded a profit
attributable to owners of the Company for 2017 of HK$301.8
million (2016: HK$205.7 million), representing a significant
year-on-year increase of 46.7%. The net profit margin is 16.2%
(2016: 12.6%), representing a growth of 3.6 percentage points
over that of the last year. Basic earnings per share were HK36
cents (2016: HK25 cents).

Moreover, the Group's trade receivable turnover days remained
steady at around 50 days due to our effective credit policies.
Meanwhile, such policies also resulted in an increase in the
Group's net cash to HK$452.3 million (2016: HK$299.3 million).
The sound financial position enables the Group to engage in
merger and acquisition in a more active manner and to adopt
necessary measures to promote the growth of the Group. In
addition, the Group has considerable orders on hand. As at 31
December 2017, the Group's orders on hands amounted to
HK$789.7 million, representing an increase of 22.3% compared
with HK$645.5 million as at 31 December 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Mold Fabrication Business

In 2017, the revenue of the mold fabrication business division
from external customers amounted to approximately HK$649.8
million, representing a stable increase of approximately 2.9%
when compared to approximately HK$631.4 million in last year, and
accounting for approximately 34.9% of the Group's total revenue.
Supported by the increased amount of orders and the enhanced
utilization rate of production lines, as well as the positive impacts
on gross profit resulting from the appreciation of Euro. During the
Year under Review, the gross profit margin of the mold fabrication
business increased by 9.0 percentage points to 37.4%.

The major products of the Group’s ultra-large standard molds are
automobiles components. The Group’s clients mainly include tier
one component suppliers to European automobile brands such
as Mercedes-Benz, BMW and Volkswagen. The Group possesses
respectable design capability, and involves in the design of our
clients’ products at an early stage. We assist in offering design
proposals with high efficiency and cost-effectiveness and at the
same time maintain high-quality of the precision molds, building
a good reputation in the industry. The Group has been dedicating
to seeking perfection in the production of ultra-large standard
molds, and has established a designated R&D team for its flagship
products to focus on the research, development and enhancement,
with a view to becoming a specialized mold supplier.

In addition to the production line of ultra-large standard molds,
the Group has also set up production lines for precision molds,
covering a number of high-end electronics consumer product
businesses, such as commercial telecommunications equipment,
mobile phones and wearable devices, medical and health care.
Coupled with the downstream plastic components manufacturing
business, the Group provides one-stop services and also quality
and convenient production solutions to our customers.

EEJ:HULHFFH& jfﬁ(m/\)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEE R LT ()

Plastic Components Manufacturing Business

In 2017, the revenue of the plastic components manufacturing
business division from external customers amounted to
approximately HK$1,211.1 million (2016: HK$995.2 million),
representing an increase of 21.7% compared with last year, and
accounting for approximately 65.1% of the Group's total revenue.

During the Year under Review, with the rising demands in the
smart home segment in North America, the Group has received
a large amount of orders from two leading brands of smart home
in North America and became their exclusive supplier of relevant
products, driving an increase of 131.9% in the smart home
segment during the year compared with last year. Currently, the
Group has been undergoing the development of new products
progressively with smart home brand customers, and has
confidence in sustaining the growth momentum in 2018 and 2019.

For mobile phones and wearable devices segment, leveraging
on its outstanding automatic and smart production technology,
the Group has won satisfactory feedbacks from its smartphone
brand customer. Coinciding with the smartphone brand customer
launching its new products at the end of 2017, the Group
successfully received orders of product components for the new
product and secured a larger share of order among all suppliers for
the existing products, driving considerable increase in the turnover
during the Year under Review. Together with the increase in the
sales of a popular audio equipment brand client, the revenue of
mobile phones and wearable devices segment has recorded a
year-on-year revenue growth of 24.7%.

For medical and health care, the growth impetus remained during
the Year under Review with the revenue increased by 36.4%
year-on-year, mainly attributable to the rising market demands
for medical and healthcare products as well as the new products
launched by customers during the year which promoted the results
in this segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The Group has been committed to optimizing the highly automatic
and smart production. During the Year under Review, due to
the significant improvement in production efficiency resulted
from the increased production volume and the Group’s efforts in
automation, the gross profit margin for the plastic components
manufacturing business division improved to 31.7% from
approximately 27.8% for last year, representing a significant
increase of 3.9 percentage points.

OUR CLIENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the sales of the Group are mainly export
sales and our customers are mainly prestigious corporations
and brands in Europe and America. Clients of the Group cover a
wide range of industries, from automobile to household electrical
appliances to mobile phones and wearable devices as well as
medical and health care. As a key supplier of molds and plastics
of high-end electronic products, the Group's orders are widely
impacted by the launch time, popularity and life cycle of products
of its downstream industry clients. However, being engaged in
the molds and plastic injection industry for more than 30 years,
the Group always sticks to the strategy of client diversity in order
to manage and diversify risks efficiently. Currently, the Group
has been widely recognized as a trustworthy business partner of
various internationally known brands of consumer goods, including
numbers of leading brands in many fast-growing industries such as
smartphones, health care and wearable devices.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$1,860.9
million, representing an increase of HK$234.3 million or 14.4%
when compared with the revenue of HK$1,626.6 million in 2016.

In 2017, the revenue from external customers of the mold
fabrication segment was HK$649.8 million, representing an
increase of HK$18.4 million or 2.9% when compared with revenue
of HK$631.4 million in 2016. The Group’'s major products of
ultra-large standard molds are automobiles components. The
Group's clients mainly include tier one component suppliers to
European automobiles brands such as Mercedes-Benz, BMW and
Volkswagen.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

HTEEJ:H—JLIJFFEI& Tﬁ(n%)

In 2017, the revenue from external customers of the plastic
components manufacturing segment was HK$1,211.1 million,
representing an increase of HK$215.9 million or 21.7% when
compared with the revenue of HK$995.2 million in 2016. The
revenue increased compared with last year, which was mainly
attributable to the positive spending sentiment in the market.
By leveraging our outstanding automatic and smart production
technology, we have secured more orders for components, and
thereby three segments, being smart home, mobile phones and
wearable devices as well as medical and health care segment in
the downstream industries, have recorded significant growth as
compared with last year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$627.0
million, representing an increase of HK$170.5 million or 37.3%
when compared with the gross profit of HK$456.5 million in 2016.
Such increase was mainly attributable to the sufficient amount
of orders in 2017, resulting in the capacity of its production line
being fully reached, which in turn significantly reduced the average
production unit cost. Meanwhile, the strict implementation on
quality enhancement within the Group was also proved effective,
thereby strengthening the awareness of quality enhancement and
waste reduction among departments. Together with the continued
increase in production efficiency driving by the sustainable
development of smart production, the gross profit margin has had
a further increase.

The gross profit margin for the mold fabrication segment increased
from 28.4% in 2016 to 37.4% for the year, primarily due to the
increased number of orders, the continuous enhancement of the
utilization rate of production lines, and the positive impacts on the
gross profit margin resulting from the appreciation of Euro during
the year, achieving an increase of 9.0 percentage points in the
gross profit margin of the mold fabrication segment.

The gross profit margin for the plastic components manufacturing
segment increased from 27.8% in 2016 to 31.7% for the year,
which increased primarily due to the significant improvement in
production efficiency arising from the increased production volume
and the Group's continuous efforts in enhancing the automation of
production lines.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$28.7
million, representing an increase of HK$6.0 million or 26.4% when
compared with HK$22.7 million in 2016. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase of approximately HK$5.0 million in
government grants income of the Group.

Other (Losses)/Gains — Net

Net other losses for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$11.1 million, representing a decrease of HK$26.5 million
when compared to the net other gains of HK$15.4 million in
2016. During the year, US dollars depreciated against Renminbi,
therefore, the Group recorded an exchange loss from revaluation
of the closing exchange rate of US dollar-denominated assets.
In addition, in order to minimise the effect of fluctuation of the
Euro to the Group, the Group borrowed a Euro-denominated bank
loan equivalent to the amount of the Group’s existing orders from
Europe to effectively hedge the effects of fluctuations of the Euro
on the Group. Although the rise of exchange rate of Euro may
cause a foreign exchange loss of Euro-denominated bank loan, the
revenue of Euro-denominated business will increase accordingly
as the exchange rate increases. The Group expected the effect
of fluctuation of the exchange rate of Euro to be relatively low,
therefore Euro hedging has been cancelled in December 2017.

Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the selling expenses was
HK$84.6 million (2016: HK$86.6 million) and the percentage to
sales amounted to 4.5% (2016: 5.3%), representing a decrease
of HK$2.0 million when compared to 2016, and the percentage to
sales decreased by 0.8 percentage point, which was mainly of the
reason that the Group changed the calculation of sales commission
during the year, resulting in the decrease in sales commission as
compared to last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B ST ()

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the administrative
expenses was HK$215.2 million (2016: HK$181.2 million) and
the percentage to sales amounted to 11.6% (2016: 11.1%),
representing an increase of HK$34.0 million when compared to
2016, and the percentage to sales increased by 0.5 percentage
point. The increase in the administrative expenses was mainly
attributable to: 1) the significant growth of the results for the year
and the annual salary adjustment which led to the increase in
wages and bonuses of employees; 2) during the year, the Group
commenced the development of new products with customers
such as smart home brands, which led to the increase in
development expenses as compared to the corresponding period
of last year; and 3) the renovation of the new office building and
purchase of equipment during the year, which led to the increase
in depreciation. Excluding the above effects of bonuses and
development costs, the percentage of administrative expenses to
sales in 2017 was 8.5%, representing a decrease of 0.5 percentage
point as compared t0 9.0% in 2016.

Finance Income — Net

Net finance income for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$4.6 million, representing an increase of HK$2.3 million or
100.0% as compared to the net finance income of HK$2.3 million
in 2016, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in operating
loans as a result of sufficient cash flows of the Group as well as
the number of purchase of principal guaranteed available-for-sale
financial assets increased, which led to the increase in the net
finance income.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$47.7 million (2016: HK$23.3 million) and the effective tax
rate was 13.6% (2016: 10.2%). Income tax expense increased
by HK$24.4 million as compared to 2016, which was mainly
attributable to the significant growth in profit before tax, which
led to the increase in income tax expense. Furthermore, all of
the Group's principal mold fabrication and plastic components
manufacturing companies were National New and High Technology
Enterprise which enjoyed a preferential enterprise income tax
rate of 15%, and our research and development expenses were
benefited from the preferential policy of extra pre-tax deduction, as
such, the effective tax rate was 13.6%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 was HK$301.8 million, representing an increase of
HK$96.1 million or 46.7% from HK$205.7 million in 2016.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group maintained a good financial position during the year.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$560.3 million (31 December 2016: HK$348.4
million). The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$540.8 million (31 December 2016: HK$381.3 million).
The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately 187.2% (31 December 2016: 152.2%).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$911.5 million (31 December 2016: HK$685.0
million). The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately 10.7% (31 December 2016: 29.1%). The gearing
ratio is lower than that as at 31 December 2016. Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in operating loans as a result of
sufficient cash flows of the Group as well as the increase in equity
caused by the profits earned during the year.

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out below:
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERE RN (E)

An analysis of the Group's key liquidity ratios as at 31 December
2017 is as follows:

R2017F12A318 » AEENETERHES
LRSI R

2017 2016
Inventory turnover days (Note 1) GFEEERE(MFT) 86 84
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 2) B SN IERE R (A iE2) 50 45
Trade payable turnover days (Note 3) B SN IBRSRE(HE3) 70 69
Current ratio (Note 4) TRENLL R (H15F4) 187.2% 1562.2%

Notes:

1. Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of inventory
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

2. Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

3. Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables
divided by cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

4. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s inventory turnover days were 86 days,
which was approximate to that of 2016.

TRADE RECEIVABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s trade receivable turnover days were
50 days, representing an increase of b days as compared to that
in 2016, which was mainly due to the significant increase in sales
amounts during the fourth quarter of 2017. The relevant sales are
still within normal credit period.

TRADE PAYABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group's trade payable turnover days were 70
days, which was approximate to that of 2016.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's current ratio was 187.2%,
representing an increase of 35.0 percentage points as compared to
that in 2016, which was mainly attributable to the increase in net
current assets of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and is exposed to foreign
currency risks arising from various currency exposures, mainly
with respect to the HK dollar, US dollar, Euro and RMB. Exchange
rate fluctuations and market trends have always been the main
concerns of the Group. Foreign currency hedging of the Group has
been managed by the Group's chief financial officer, and overseen
by the Group’s chief executive officer. In accordance with the
Group's hedging needs and the then foreign exchange situation,
the Group's chief financial officer would collect and analyze
information regarding various hedging instruments and determine
stop-loss thresholds. The Group’s chief financial officer would then
collect quotations from various banks as to the financial instrument
and present such quotations to the Group's chief executive officer,
who would then evaluate and make a decision as to whether to
enter into the relevant hedging agreement. The conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

The Group's cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in US dollar, RMB, Euro and HK dollar. Its operating cash inflows
and outflows were primarily denominated in RMB, US dollar, Euro
and HK dollar. The Group will closely monitor the exchange rate
movements and regularly review its gearing structure so as to
mitigate the expected exchange rate risk.

RMB EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group’'s major revenue is principally denominated in US
dollar, Euro, HK dollar and RMB, and the Group’s major expenses
are denominated in RMB. The Group has not entered into any
agreement for RMB hedging purpose.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 30 June 2017, the Company issued 6,660,000 ordinary
shares arising from the exercise of share options granted under
the Share Option Scheme adopted on 29 December 2014 by
directors. The issue price of each share was HK$1.61 and the
amount of proceeds from the exercise of the share options were
approximately HK$10,723,000.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material change in
the capital structure of the Company during the year, and the
Company'’s capital included ordinary shares and other reserves.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EIRE SRk (&)

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S REARAERAHABENABRE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING k=S

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong RARMN2013F12 A20 B EF BB A 5P
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 20 December 2013. Net proceeds BRAB([BRZAT]) BT - 2REHX AR
from the initial public offering totaled approximately HK$268.0 ERFTSFIRFESTH268.08 8B T(E
million (including the net proceeds from the exercise of the over- 15201451 A15 BT BB RENMER
allotment option on 15 January 2014). THF5E) o

The table below sets out the use of net proceeds from the initial TRES TEARAFRERESERIBEENHA

public offering. R o
Use of proceeds FrERIEAE
Till 31 December 2017
HEZ2017%12A31H
% of total Net Utilised Unutilised
amount proceeds amounts amounts
LAz FrasE 2EA ABH
BOk B RE MH

(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HKS$ million)
(BEE%TT) (BEE#TT) (BE%T)

Establishing a new business unit RUBANBEEENEE
specialising in ultra-large standard By
molds

Upgrading mold fabrication capabilities ~ FH 18 B &¢E5Y

Expanding Shenzhen plastic BRFI B AL EEER

components manufacturing capacity

Expanding Suzhou plastic components 7 &M T 284 (Bt ARy
manufacturing capacity

Strategic acquisitions of other mold RES U E 8 BBV

fabricators
Research and development PR A
General working capital —MReEEES

100% 268.0* 254.9 13.1

*  On 15 January 2014, China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, the sole *  R2014F1H150 » 2EBEZERDRBEHAH

global coordinator (on behalf of the international underwriters) of the global B 5 ) B B E (5 ) BER A G5 77158
offering, partially exercised the over-allotment option, pursuant to which the SFHEIGHE o B - AR AL RIEEFAR1.26/5 T %
Company issued 26,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the subscription 7726,600,000/% 2R ET1B0. 15 7T.2 LiBAR - AriZat
price of HK$1.25 per share. The allocation of the net proceeds of HK$32.4 B FEER2 AE BT IRA NG A A2013E 12811
million was adjusted on a pro rata basis as set out in the section headed “Use ALBERERE([HBRERE ) 82 EH% | —fFF
of Proceeds” in the Company’s prospectus dated 11 December 2013 (the BB I EEF S FD o F Y - TS A B SE
“Prospectus”). As a result, the net aggregate proceeds were increased from 235 65 B E T N2 268.05 & T °

HK$235.6 million to HK$268.0 million.

The use of proceeds shown above is in line with the intended use FrEsIE AL AR E RSN EBe—
as set out in the Prospectus. B o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

The Group plans to invest in capacity expansion and pursue
suitable investment projects to capitalize the potential growth of
the Group's business in the coming years in the manner set out
in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus. Such source of funding would be primarily from the
internal resources.

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 3,726 full-time employees
(31 December 2016: 3,286) and 520 workers dispatched to us
from third party staffing companies (31 December 2016: 621). The
Group's staff policy aims at recruiting employees with high levels
of professionalism. Such employees are mainly allocated to the
engineering and research and development departments, aiming at
providing the customers with one-stop and customized integrated
plastics solutions. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 415
engineering and research and development staff with college or
higher degrees (31 December 2016: 331).

The Group’'s remuneration policy aims to offer competitive
remuneration packages to recruit, retain and motivate
competent directors and employees. The Group believes that
the remuneration packages are reasonable, competitive and
in line with market trends. The Group has put in place a share
option scheme for its directors and employees in a bid to provide
a competitive package for the Group's long-term growth and
development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’s
work ability and personal performance.

The Group has implemented training programmes for the
employees to meet different job requirements. The Group believes
that these initiatives have contributed to increasing employee
productivity.

As required by the PRC regulations, the Group makes contributions
to mandatory social security funds for the benefits of its PRC
employees which provide pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B ST ()

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has made no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

OUTLOOK

With the 2017 recovery among key economies in the world
continuing in 2018, the Group, being one of the leading providers
of the advanced one-stop plastic solution in the world, as well
as a long-term business partner of the major technology giants
in the United States and various internationally-known high-
tech consumer brands, will usher into a new era of tremendous
opportunities. It includes new product implementation plans in
2018 which have been confirmed among the diversified customer
base, that will bring us fruitful and adequate orders. Currently, the
existing orders have high visibility. As of 31 December 2017, the
Group's orders on hand was HK$789.7 million (31 December 2016:
HK$645.5 million), representing a year-on-year growth of 22.3%.

The Group will constantly reinforce the existing partnerships
with its clients in the field of high-precision plastic molds and
components, as well as to proactively identify and seek for new
customers. In particular, the Group is optimistic about the future
business development of the automobiles mold in Europe and
North America, and is currently actively establishing a technical
support center to respond to customers’ demands on our products
more promptly, so as to further expand its customer base,
sales channel and regions coverage. Given that the production
lines have nearly reached their full utilization, the Group is now
seeking for a suitable site in the peripheral area of Shenzhen for
plants expansion and is also searching for merger and acquisition
opportunities to increase capacity. Meanwhile, the Group
continues to make effort in upgrading its smart and automatic
production facilities, thereby optimizing operating procedures
and production efficiency to satisfy the increasing orders. For
the production technology and product quality, especially for
those of the mold fabrication, the Group will dedicate to pursuing
specialization and seeking perfection on top of the existing
technological strength, continuing making breakthrough and
innovation, so as to lay a solid foundation for its long-term and
sustainable development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The Group signed an investment agreement in December 2017,
of which the Group strategically invested a total amount of
GBP2,280,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,800,000)
in Precision Robotics, a robotic surgery medical robot platform
in the United Kingdom. Such transaction has been completed
in January 2018. The investment is in line with the Group's
expansion strategy in the medical and healthcare sector, and it
underscores the Group’s determination to further penetrate into
the fast growing medical industry and explore global opportunities
in technology advancement. Precision Robotics is a new spin off
company launched by Imperial College London. The investment in
Precision Robotics will enhance the Group’s business reputation
in the medical technology sector and create more opportunities to
acquire new customers. In order to enhance its competitiveness,
the Group will continuously explore opportunities for mergers and
acquisitions, actively seek for targets that have complementary
advantages and can facilitate in expanding the Group’s customer
mix and technology enhancement, so as to further expand its
business and improve the profitability.

Looking into 2018, the Group is not only aiming to maintain its
leading position in the high-precision plastic molds sector, to
reinforce its existing customer base, but also looking into the
future, to grow bigger and stronger, and to become a model
for its peers in the industry and contribute more to society. The
Group has over 30 years of experience in the mold and plastic
industry. With the close relationships with various giants in high-
tech consumer brands leveraging on its abundant experiences in
molds and plastic injection as well as its advanced technology,
the Group is confident that it would jump to a new height riding
on the prevailing trend of high-end technology consumer products
diversification and upgrade.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B ST ()

DEVELOPMENTS AS TO DEFECTS TO LAND TITLE
WITH RESPECT TO THE SHENZHEN TANGJIA
PLANTS

Reference is made to the Prospectus and the announcement of
the Company dated 20 March 2014. Unless otherwise defined
herein, capitalized terms used in this sub-section shall have
the same meanings as those defined in the Prospectus. As the
Bureau of Urban Planning and Land Commission of the Shenzhen
Municipality (RIITEEIE +Z) is examining policy proposals
regarding the conversion of land use from high-technology project
to commercial use by payment of land premium for submission
for the approval of the municipal government, pursuant to the
instructions of the Land Bureau, TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd.
("TK Technology (Shenzhen)”) will submit the written application
to convert the green-type property ownership certificate into the
red-type property ownership certificate after the promulgation of
the relevant policy.

As disclosed in the section headed “Business — Properties — Plans
to Resolve Risks Related to Certain of Our Leased Properties”
of the Prospectus, the Company has contingency arrangements
in place and will adopt such measures when it is necessary.
Such contingency arrangements include relocating to the Backup
Plants by exercising the Company’s right to request the Backup
Plants Landlord to enter into the formal lease agreement with the
Company within 15 days from the Company’s notice to the Backup
Plants Landlord for one or more of the Backup Plants pursuant to
the Pre-lease Agreements. Towards the expiry of the Pre-lease
Agreements, in the event that TK Technology (Shenzhen) has
yet to convert the green-type property ownership certificate into
red-type property ownership certificate, the Company shall seek
to either renew the Pre-lease Agreements or engage another
party for a similar arrangement. For details of the contingency
arrangements, please refer to the section headed “Business —
Properties — Plans to Resolve Risks Related to Certain of Our
Leased Properties” of the Prospectus. The Company has renewed
the Pre-lease Agreements until 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 58, is the chairman of the Group. Mr.
Li is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director on 28 March 2013. He is also the chairman
of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall management
and strategic planning of the Group. He has accumulated
more than 34 years of professional experience in plastic mold
fabrication and plastic injection molding and also experience
in business management in the manufacturing industry. Mr. Li
together with Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and
an executive director of the Company, established Tung Kong
Machinery Moulding FTY in Hong Kong in 1983, and have since
expanded the Group’s mold fabrication business into the PRC
in 1992 and moved the operations to Shenzhen, the PRC. Mr. Li
was elected the “Winner of Young Industrialist Awards of Hong
Kong” in 2003 and “Outstanding Person of Shenzhen Machinery
Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of the Year”
by Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds several
social titles, including serving as a committee member and the
convenor of Hong Kong of Shenzhen Chinese People’'s Political
Consultative Conference, the President of Guang Ming General
Chamber of Commerce (Industry and Commerce), a committee
member and honorary president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council Foundation, the Chairman of Kowloon City District Road
Safety Campaign Committee, the vice chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, the vice president
of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association, the
executive director of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce,
the vice chairman of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming
New District and the president of Rotary Club, Tsuen Wan, Hong
Kong in 2000. In July 1974, Mr. Li graduated from Yuanzhou
Gongshe Lulan Primary School in Boluo, Guangdong in China, and
obtained a middle school graduation certificate. Mr. Li is also the
controlling shareholder and director of both Eastern Mix Company
Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company) and Lead Smart
Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENaREERE(E)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, aged 56, is an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung has
approximately 29 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. He was appointed as an executive
director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible
for formulation and implementation of the business plans of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung acted as a buyer
in National Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May 1985 to
August 1987. He was promoted to Component Engineer in May
1987. From August 1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at
AST Research (Far East) Ltd. as a procurement engineer. Mr.
Yung joined the Group in 1989 as the general manager and was
primarily responsible for operation management for the molding
business. He served as the managing director of the Group since
2000, mainly responsible for business development and the daily
operations of the Group’'s business. Mr. Yung graduated from
the Department of Industrial Engineering of the University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree of Science in Engineering in
November 1983. He also graduated from the Centre of Buddhist
Studies of the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of Hong
Kong with a Master’'s Degree in Buddhist Studies in November
2008. Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and director of Eastern
Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company),
and the controlling shareholder and director of Cheer Union
Development Ltd. (a substantial shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 57, is an executive director of the Group.
He is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has
approximately 34 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. Mr. Lee together with Mr. Li Pui
Leung (a controlling shareholder, the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company) established Tung Kong Machinery
Moulding FTY, in 1983. He has been holding the position of
manager, mainly responsible for procurement for the Group. From
August 2009 to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the EMBA
training classes of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China,
and obtained a certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee
obtained a degree of master of business administration from
the University of Wales, the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also
the shareholder and director of Eastern Mix Company Limited
(a controlling shareholder of the Company), the controlling
shareholder and director of Normal Times International Limited (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), and the younger brother
of Mr. Li Pui Leung.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

PEMKE 5658 AAEENITESHRT
BEH - BhAARIFNEESNE - §
FTEREBEAERMER B EERL29F
4R - HR2013FE3 A28 R T AL E
EHTES - FAEAEFTRRITAEE
MEBSE - RIMAXREBZA] - §hEBR
198558 21987 F8 A IEAF B XHER
FERERANAINKES - ER198745 A
BERA BB TEM - B1987F8H £1989
F2R  SEAEFUESH(ER)ARD
BIRIEREE TI2A - SR AR 1989F MARE
BIETRLZE  FTERFEIBEBNEESE
B HE2000F BEFASENESHL
B IEZEEEBERMASEEBHAE
BB o HELAEMNI1983F 11 ARENETEARE
TETER MBIRBBLE[ - BN
2008F 11 AR ENBBREL SR ERHE
WL - BEGBHEEISMN - §h4
MEBERER AR (ARE ZIZEBRRE) 2
RREE RERBEREARAF(ARAIZE
B ) Z IR RESE o

ZRBEE 575 AAEERITES - &
BAEEAIAZ— » WHR2013F3 H28H
BZAAAREENITES - TEERTBIE
BERMERTYE HEHER L34 FHEE - 54
AR1983F HE AR N A AIERARE « THR
MITE B R T A B IR BB R
H—EREELERY  TZEELEBEMNE
B8 - B2009F8HE2010F108 » FHL4EHE
FEEEANSEWRRIEZEMBATHEI - R
BREZBE - N2013F6 8 » THEARMBE
EEBEtTtASIEERELTEMN - TREE
ENAERBERARN(RRARZERRKE) 2
REREE - BREBEERAR(AARZE
ERF)ZIERBERES - MEHRILER
PIEEIE



Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Group on 27
November 2013. Mr. Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as
a corporate financial controller and was mainly responsible for
the finance, taxation, audit and investment of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at Deloitte Ross
Tohmatsu (currently known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”) and
served as a financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacture
company, and manufacturing companies listed in Hong Kong
and the U.S.. He has accumulated 30 years of experience in the
field of auditing, accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Cheung
graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (the predecessor of Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1987 with a major in
accounting, and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since January 1996 and a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
September 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, GBS 8BS Jr, aged 65, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. Chung obtained a doctoral degree in engineering from the
University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010 and
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from City University of
Macau in September 2012. He was re-appointed as an Industrial
Professor by the University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in
December 2015. He was awarded an honourary doctorate of
business administration by the Lingnan University in November
2015, an honourary doctorate of business administration by the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007 and an
honourary degree, Doctor of the University, by the University of
Newcastle, Australia in July 2006 respectively. He was awarded
by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government
("HKSAR Government”) the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) Medal on 30
June 2017, the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal on 1 July 2011,
and was appointed as Justice of Peace effective on 1 July 2005.
Dr. Chung won the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997,
and was further awarded the Industrialist of the Year in November
2014.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENaREERE(E)

Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of industry. He
was the Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from
July 2011 to July 2013 and has been the Honourary Chairman of
the Federation since 5 July 2013. In addition, Dr. Chung holds
positions in a number of HKSAR Government advisory committees
and is an active member of many social committees and
associations. Dr. Chung has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Vocational Training Council since January 2018. Dr. Chung is also
the Founder and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation.

Dr. Chung had been an independent non-executive director of
KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited (stock code: 3816), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, from 22 September 2012 to 27
August 2015. He is a co-founder and currently a non-executive
director of Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock code:
669), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He has also
been an independent non-executive director of Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 927), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, since 1 April 2014. He has also been an independent
non-executive director of Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. (stock
code: 345), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 24 June
2017.

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Ho obtained a bachelor’s degree
in economics from the University of Sydney, Australia in May
1988 and a master of commerce specialised in finance from
the University of New South Wales, Australia in April 1991. Mr.
Ho was awarded as Chartered Financial Analyst by the Institute
of Chartered Financial Analysts in September 1998 and is a
CFA charterholder. Mr. Ho has previously served as Head of
China Research, Senior Research Analyst and Vice President in
Institutional Equities in international financial institutions, including
Credit Lyonnais, JP Morgan and HSBC. Mr. Ho joined HSBC Group
since November 2004. In June 2008, he was appointed as Head
of Research, China, serving and acting as the representative in
the Beijing Representative office of HSBC. As at January 2013,
Mr. Ho worked as a Hong Kong China Equity sales director for
HSBC. Mr. Ho had been an executive director of Fifth Element
Resources Limited, a company previously listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange with the stock code FTH, which has delisted
starting from 24 April 2015, and in January 2017, Mr. Ho resigned
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

from the remaining posts in the company. Since 10 October 2014,
Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of BBI
Life Sciences Corporation (stock code: 1035), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Since 5 March 2015,
Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of Tsaker
Chemical Group Limited (stock code: 1986), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho has been the chief
financial officer of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. (stock code:
2869), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since 4 August 2015 and one of the joint company secretaries
since 27 November 2015, and he has been a director of Guogin
Greentown (Beijing) Asset Management Co. Ltd. (B £4%H (4t %)
BEEIEAMR AT, one of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd.'s
subsidiaries since September 2015.

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of both the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is a former
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China and
has over 30 years of experience in auditing and providing support
for initial public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang
received a bachelor's degree in business administration from
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of
the following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange: China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited
(stock code: 133), Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(stock code: 460), China Animation Characters Company Limited
(stock code: 1566) and Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 231). Mr. Tsang was an independent director of Agria
Corporation (formerly listed on the New York Stock Exchange and
delisted in January 2017) from August 2011 to October 2017, a
director of PGG Wrightson Limited (a company listed on the New
Zealand Stock Exchange; stock code: PGW) from November 2014
to October 2017 and an independent non-executive director of
PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2078) from
January 2013 to January 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENaREERE(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yue Yiu Chung, aged 51, joined the Group in July 2014 as
corporate financial controller, and is responsible for the Group and
plants finance operation. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
a company listed in the U.S. and was responsible for the entire
Asia Pacific region finance affair. He has approximately 26 years
of experience in auditing and finance. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy from City University of Hong Kong. He
has also been a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since August 2000.

Mr. Lui Shit Chun, aged 53, joined the Group and was appointed
as the general manager of the plastic components manufacturing
division of the Group in March 2011, responsible for the overall
management of the plastic components manufacturing division.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lui had worked in the plastics
industry for approximately ten years and has worked as the
operation manager of Nypro Hong Kong Ltd. Mr. Lui graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1994
with a higher certificate in manufacturing engineering (plastics). He
obtained a master’'s degree in procurement management from the
University of Strathclyde (distant learning) in the U.K. in October
2007.

Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 38, is the general manager of the
standard mold business units of the Group. Mr. Lu joined
the Group in May 2002, and was appointed as the deputy
general manger of the Group in January 2009, responsible
for the development of the mold fabrication business, project
management and the management of affairs in respect of
technology, quality and sourcing management. In October 2013,
Mr. Lu was appointed as the general manager of the standard
mold business units of the Group, he is responsible for the
overall management of the standard mold business units. Mr. Lu
graduated from Zhengzhou University of Light Industry in July 2000
with a diploma of high molecular material machining specialised
in mold design and manufacturing. In May 2013, Mr. Lu obtained
a degree of master of Business Administration in Executive
Management from the Royal Roads University.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 41, is the chief marketing
director of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group. Mr. Lok joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed
as the chief marketing director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group. He was mainly responsible
for sales and marketing affairs of the plastics components
manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lok had
approximately eight years of experience in plastics industry. Mr.
Lok previously served as the application development manager
of GE Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lok graduated from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.

Mr. Joerg Wehling, aged 51, Mr Joerg Wehling onboard on 4
May 2017 as the General Manager of precision mold business unit
of Group, and will take charge of all the management work for
precision mold business unit. Mr Joerg Wehling graduated from
Fachhochschule Wiener Neustadt of a College degree in 1985,
and has more than 30 years work experience in mold industry.
Mr.Joerg Wehling worked for some famous companies, such as
Jabil, Molex Autom, Husky etc.

Mr. Xing Fu Zhi, aged 42, is the internal audit manager of the
Group. Mr. Xing joined the Group in November 2011, and was
appointed as the internal audit manager of the Group, responsible
for the internal audit of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Xing had approximately 13 years of experience in finance and audit.
Mr. Xing has held positions such as assistant accountant in a Wal-
Mart China company, senior internal control consultant in an IBM
joint venture in China, finance manager and internal audit manager
in Hitachi GST China. During his service in IBM and Hitachi, he was
involved in a number of projects including ERP implementation and
SOX compliance. Mr. Xing became a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified internal auditor
of The Institute of Internal Auditors in November 2009. Mr. Xing
graduated in June 1998 form Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC
with a bachelor’'s degree in economics, majoring in auditing. He
also obtained the Degree of Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from The University of Manchester in November 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EENaREERE(E)

Ms. Zeng Xie Qin, aged 43, joined the Group on 1 March 2016
as Human Resources Director and is responsible for the Group's
and plant’'s Human Resources management work. Prior to joining
the Group, she worked for several enterprises of the FORTUNE
Top 500, such as Jabil, Philips and Mars. She graduated in Jiangxi
Nanchang university and obtained human resource management
division intermediate certificate. During “2017 Shenzhen influential
HR" competition activity. She won the Chief Talent Officer award
in Shenzhen, which issued by Shenzhen human resources services
association.

Mr. Yim Cham Sum, aged 52, joined the Group and was
appointed as the Operations Director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group in December 2017,
responsible for the operation management of the plastic
components manufacturing division. Mr. Yim obtained the Degree
of Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the University
of Strathclyde in the U.K. in July 2002. He had worked in the
manufacturing operation management for over ten years and has
worked of Nypro Plastics & Metal Products (Shenzhen) Co.,Ltd.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 55, is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management
— Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa" for further
information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company believes that good corporate governance practices
are very important for maintaining and promoting investor
confidence and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board
sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group's
business. The Board is committed to strengthening the Group’'s
corporate governance practices and ensuring transparency and
accountability of the Company’s operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2017. Key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company are summarized below.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealing in the Company's securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERWE (B)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE WRITTEN GUIDELINES
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines"”), governing securities transactions by employees
(including directors or employees of a subsidiary or holding
company of the Company) who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its
directors and relevant employees in advance.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4
executive directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

Executive directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this
annual report. Save as Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu
are brothers, none of the members of the Board is related to one
another.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
to ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Li Pui Leung
and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practices, whereas the Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the day-to-day management of the Group’s business
and implementing objectives, policies, strategies and business
plan of the Group approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having three independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one- third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide spectrum
of business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
They are invited to serve on the Board Committees of the
Company. Through active participation at Board and Board
Committees meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests, all independent non-
executive directors have made various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company and provided adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in light
of the independence guidelines set out in the said Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rERERME(E)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term,
subject to renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive
director is engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years.
The appointment may be terminated by either party by not less
than 3 months’ written notice. Each of the independent non-
executive directors of the Company is appointed for a term of 3
years.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company's Articles
of Association (the “Articles”). The Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing Board composition, monitoring the
appointment of directors and assessing the independent non-
executive directors.

According to the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time
being (if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. In addition, any new director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until
the first general meeting after appointment, and any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company.
The retiring directors are eligible for re-election by the shareholders
at the respective general meetings.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM"), Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr.
Tsang Wah Kwong will retire at the AGM pursuant to the Articles
provisions stated in the foregoing paragraph. All the above retiring
directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM. The Board and the Nomination Committee recommended
their re-appointment. The Company’s circular, sent together with
this annual report, contains detailed information of the above
retiring directors as required by the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is also responsible for implementing
policies in relation to financial matters, which include risk
management and internal controls and compliance, if applicable.
In addition, the Board reviews the financial performance of the
Group, approves investment proposals, nomination of directors
to the Board and appointment of key management personnel.
These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or
through Board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

All directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company, the duties
to act honestly and in good faith, in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times and to avoid conflicts of interests.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring compliance with Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations. Any director
may request for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

Delegation of corporate governance duties

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Year under Review, the Audit Committee has reviewed
and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance with the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Delegation of management functions

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions of
the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to
the full Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest
of a substantial shareholder or a director, material acquisitions
and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring, share
issuance and distribution of dividend, and approval of financial
results and corporate strategies. The Board will review those
issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to
the needs of the Group.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
he/she is fully aware of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The existing
directors are continually updated on changes and developments
to the Group’'s business and on the latest developments in
the laws, rules and regulations relating to directors’ duties and
responsibilities. Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All
directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses. Directors are requested to provide their
training records to the Company for records.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Up to the date of this annual report, the directors complied with the
code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in continuous

professional training as follows:

BEARFRA
Al 2 sFRIGRCEEA.6.605

/\-/\—\

PDEERHRE(B)

BH - EFEETRXRERT
SENLTHEZE

fm] EJ” 0

Mode of participation

relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

2HEEX
Name of director a b c d
= o
Executive directors: HITERE
Mr. Li Pui Leung MR A v v/ v v
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEDLEE v/ v/ v/ v/
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE v/ 4 v v
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa R ELA v v/ v/ v/
Independent non-executive directors: BUHBITESE -
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ELEEEL v v v v
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung AT RR B S A v v/ v/ v/
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BENIE v/ v v/ v/

a:  Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company relating to a: EEZ2MTAEAQAMAENFIRE  REEHE
directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, EREBRRNES - ETARR REMEAERRE
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. BMTHBEREME -

b:  Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company Secretary/ b: EBEEEZTAR / MI@J‘ﬁEﬁzﬁﬁl%
the Company’s management on the Group's business, operations and corporate % EER ﬁ% $ EHI SRR ERER -
governance matters.

c:  Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their duties and c. EBFHETHIEAR MESPNRAREZHE
responsibilities, organised by professional firms/institutions. REAHBENHSE HIE -

Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications on subjects d: EFMETHASEMBEE ETARRKAEEER

BRTHEEMZBNTEORMD
b AR ©

| HRAE
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERME(E)

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board
committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out below:

EEHERLE
BEENHE2017E12A31B I EERNETT
NARNBEFENEFELEHURK
RAREe 2 B RELHETIMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ 8RR

Annual

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General

Name of director Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting

e

BEpE ES® ENZEE  ¥MzEe  R#ZEE BEXE

Executive directors: HITEE -

Mr. Li Pui Leung FPREE 5/5 NATER N/ATER 11 11

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEALE 5/5 N/ATER 2/2 N/ATER 1”1

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRIBEE 5/5 NATER N/ATER NATER 7N

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE 5/5 NATER NARER N/ATER 1
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTEE

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ELTET 5/5 3/3 202 171 17

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung G156 4 5/5 33 212 0 0

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong DERFE 5/5 33 202 171 17

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of

executive directors during the Year under Review.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’'s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request. All the Board committees should
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Mr.
Li Pui Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, Mr. Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least once in any financial year and to make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become
Board members and makes recommendation to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
directors.

In selecting candidates for directorships of the Company, the
Nomination Committee may make reference to certain criteria
such as the Company’'s needs, Board diversity, the integrity,
experience, skills and professional knowledge of the candidate
and the amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

TLEERRSE(E)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rERERME(E)

According to the diversity policy of the Board adopted by the
Company, the Nomination Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the policy, developing and reviewing measurable
objectives (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, or professional experience) for
implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board. The Nomination Committee focus on
the diversification of the members of the board, hoping to increase
the number of female members, but temporarily no suitable
candidates.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee has held 1 meeting (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the policy for the nomination of directors;

— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

— Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring directors
standing for re-election at the 2017 annual general meeting;
and

— Assessment of the independence of all the Company’s
independent non-executive directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Dr.
Chung Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr.
Ho Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the majority of
which are independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration
proposals of all directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rERERWRE(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration REZE2017F12A3TBIEFEAN » HMEES
Committee has held 2 meetings (the attendance records of SRR TMASR(RZESRENEFLE
each Committee member are set out in above section headed HREX[EEHFLE] &) WETTT
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following FIEB T :

major works:

— Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group; — MR ANE B AR R 2RE
— Assessment of the performance of executive directors; — FMEMITESESA
— Review of the remuneration package of directors and senior — BNEENENEEEBCHFM: &

management; and

— Consideration of the bonus payable to directors and senior — BZENEZEERERETEE2016FEZ
management for the year 2016 and the proposed salary B R2018FE 2 EZ T IRIE ©

increment for the year 2018.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual RIBREERTR 2 FRANEEB. 1.5 &
remuneration of the members of the senior management, including MEBEKE (BIERSEERITEENSN
those members of senior management who are also executive BEEBRKE)NEHZE2017F12A31BIEFE
directors, by band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out ZEEEHMZABRDELT

below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

Number of individual

#FHEAAE R (BT) AE
0-500,000 1
500,001-1,000,000 1
1,000,001-1,500,000 2

1,5600,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-3,500,000
3,500,001-4,000,000
4,000,001-4,500,000
4,500,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-5,500,000
5,500,001-6,000,000
6,000,001-6,500,000
6,500,001-7,000,000
7,000,001-7,500,000
7,500,001-8,000,000
8,000,001-8,500,000

B [ ==

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for RAREEZREE2017F12B31HILFE
the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 34 to the ZEH B S SRR M FE34 -

financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rERERME(E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members, namely, Mr. Tsang
Wah Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and Mr. Ho
Kenneth Kai Chung, all are independent non-executive directors.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual terms raised by the external auditor
before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
has held 3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee
member are set out in above section headed “Directors’
Attendance Records”) and performed the following major works:

Review and discussion of the annual audited financial
statements, results announcement and report for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the related accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings, the report from the management on the Company's
review of the risk management and internal control systems,
and recommendation of the re-appointment of the external
auditor;

Review of the Group’s continuing connected transactions and
the compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided
by the Company’s controlling shareholders;

Review of and monitoring the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

— Review and discussion of the interim financial statements,
results announcement and report for the six months ended 30
June 2017, and the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;

— Review of the annual audit plan of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
including the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to
them, their reporting obligations and their work plan;

— Review of the effectiveness and performance of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan; and

— Discussion of the latest amendments to the Listing Rules.

The external auditor attended all the above meetings to discuss
with the Audit Committee members on issues arising from the
audit and financial reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who fulfils
the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and
Senior Management” section in this annual report. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the Independent
Auditor's Report on pages 118 to 124.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERME(E)

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company's
auditor, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are analysed below:

HZE2017%F12A31BILFE » B ERAK
NAIZEAE TR K E S A S ATRIAZE
NIEZEBREERSITUOT

Type of services provided by the external auditor SNEZEETIRENEREESR Fees paid/payable
BN ENER
HK$'000
FHET
Audit services — audit fee for the year ended HBURE —HE2017F12A831H

31 December 2017 LHFENZEER 3,820

Non-audit services — interim review fee BT - E E2017F6 A30H
for the six months ended 30 June 2017 WEARERM R BHEME R 553
Total: B 4,373

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements for each financial year, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group for that year
and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017, the directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and have prepared disclosure of the financial position of the Group
with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board believes that sound risk management and internal control
systems are essential to the achievement of the strategic goals of
the Group, and confirmed that the Board is responsible to set up,
maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems. Management
is responsible for the design and implementation of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems to manage the risk. Good
risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The Group’s risk management framework

In order to improve the risk management and internal control
systems, as well as enhance the level of management and risk
prevention capabilities, the Group established its risk management
framework in 2016. The risk management framework includes the
Board and its Audit Committee, senior management and subsidiary
managements, in three levels. (Details refer to the below framework)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rERERME(E)

The Group has commissioned a professional risk advisory body
to help build risk management framework, develop the Risk
Assessment Manual, and conduct risk assessments to determine
the nature and extent of the risk. In the risk assessment process,
the management and the Internal Audit Department, have
identified the major risks faced by the Group and ranked these
risks according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on
the Group, as well as further development of risk management
measures to maintain the risks at an acceptable level.

The Company also has an Internal Audit Department, which is
responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The management and the Internal Audit Department would
report to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems,
and makes recommendations. The Audit Committee also ensures
that an overall review of the effectiveness of such systems is
conducted at least annually and put forward to the Board for
consideration.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives; and acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

The Company has also developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

Review of risk management and internal control system

The Board and its Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company's risk management and internal control systems
for the year 2017, as well as taking into account the resource,
adequacy of staff qualifications, training and experience of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting and internal audit
functions. Based on the reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department and the management, the Board considered that the
Company's risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Group has its risk management and internal control policies
and procedures reviewed, to ensure compliance with the new
requirements, and explore opportunities for improvement.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meeting of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty- one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
written requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures
for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”,
may follow the same procedures by sending a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong. The shareholder should
state his/her proposals in the written requisition and submit the
written requisition as early as practicable to enable the Company
Secretary to make necessary arrangement.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rERERME(E)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) should prepare a written
notice duly signed by him/her of his/her intention to propose a
person for the election and a notice duly signed by the person to
be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong or its share registrar at least 7 days prior to the date
of the general meeting. Where the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting, the period for the
lodgment of the notices should commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting and end not later than
7 days prior to the date of the general meeting.

Procedure for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send enquiries to the Board to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop
No.19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee are available to answer questions at shareholders’
meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’s business operations and development,
financial information and other information are available for public
access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year under Review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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ABOUT THE GROUP

Founded in 1983, the Group humbly made its entrance into the
plastics manufacturing business with a small plastic moulding
factory in Hong Kong. In the past thirty years, the Group has
since grown exponentially to become one of the industry’s most
well-known one-stop integrated plastics solutions providers. The
diverse product ranges have met customers’ demands in various
industries including automobile, commercial telecommunications
equipments, mobile phones and wearable devices, medical and
health care and smart home. Through research and development,
the Group is constantly designing innovative solutions to meet
customers’ evolving needs.

AR AEE
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The Group's Core Competencies NEBIZ UHEFE D

e Research and Development
* Innovative Design

* Moulding Manufacturing

¢ |njection Moulding

* Enhanced Processes

¢ |Installation

® Production Assembling

SUSTAINABILITY VISION

Sustainability Strategy

The Group is dedicated in embedding sustainability culture and
humanism into all business processes. The Group treats its
business as a human body that only grows and thrives when
all components are doing well. The Group strives to make real
connection with the stakeholders through engagements and
mutual understanding, while inspiring each other for sustainability
and greatness.

In line with the aim of creating and sustaining shared value
through collective action, the following key elements have been
identified to elaborate on the Group’s sustainability strategy:
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e Synchronizing with the Environment

The goal is to minimize the environmental impact and reducing
natural resource consumption of the activities to a level
at which the business can coexist with the environment.
Accordingly, all efforts are focused on key areas such as
emission reduction, resource optimization, and environment
preservation.

e Creating Value for the Stakeholders

Striving to be a partner of success with the stakeholders by
going the extra miles to capture maximum potential for each of
them.

e Staff Capacity Building

With the firm belief in meritocracy, the Group endeavour to
build a work environment that maximizes the performance of
each employee to help them rise up to their full potential.

e Enhancing Transparency and Integrity

Gaining the trust of the stakeholders by upholding integrity
and maintaining a high level of transparency through regular
communication and disclosing business activities.

¢ Continuous Improvement

Constantly adapting and evolving to strengthening the quality
of the products and upgrading business performance, while
proactively to assure customer satisfaction.

By making steadily progress in the Group’s sustainability vision
and approach, the Group hopes to fulfil its environmental and
social responsibilities whilst boosting business performance to
greater height.

¢ Paying It Forward

While reaping the fruits of hard work, the Group is committed
to share its prosperity through leveraging on its core capabilities
to further contribute to society well-being.
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Engaging Stakeholders in the
Sustainable Development Process

Engaging stakeholders in the business process and tackling
issues collectively are the essence of the Group's approach
to business development. Building and maintaining long term
relationships with the stakeholders are critical for the continuous
improvement of the Group.

Internalizing stakeholders’ advices and expectations in each
business process constitutes the Group’s core strategy in building

IHEERPHOENS

REBFREHNZD - EREBRIESROR
NEZEARARBOARRE - At - B E
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long lasting relationships toward real sustainability.

Stakeholders &

Customers
BE

Suppliers
HER

Employees
BT

Government and Other PuinC Bodies

B EBFT M Lt A R B

General Public and Community
NREAt R

Education and Research Partners
HE MRB

Investors and Shareholders

REE MR

Professional Associations

EXHE
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Engagement Methods 2275 =

e Site visits and meetings Bt EZ &2 K& =%

e Industrial seminars E 2T @

e Satisfaction surveys m=EHfHE

e Online media A4 @ F=

e Email and direct mailing & 7 $B 4 A 2 & 4

B RREH
AFE

e Site visits and meetings
e Online media #34% i@
e Seminars fff & &

e Quarterly general meetings == & 3%

e Performance appraisals 45 2% 57 &

e Intranet P 49

* HR information circulation A & 2F1z 2 ik i@
e Surveys B&ERAS

e Monthly newsletters & A 2=

e \WeChat news feed #i{=38 &

o Site visits & i & %2
e Online media B4& @B F =

e Public consultations A &
e Social events #t [& )& &)
e Online media A& @B F=

e Collaborative forums & & 4

e Internship & {E&R 18

e Technical seminars # fl fff 51 &
* Online media B#& BT =

e Online media 48 4% @A F =
e Email and direct mailing & - B8 {4 LA & B {4

e Financial reports and sustainability report Bf 75 R & A Kk A] 5 48 3% &

e Annual general meeting & E I8 5 € %

e Industrial seminars E XMt <
e Online media %R @ F =

#H
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Identifying Material Issues

In the Group's engagements with the internal and external
stakeholders, the following key pertinent issues have been

identified:

BREEESH

AEBERRINEFFDE 2L - BEET AT
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Key Sustainability Issues Identified = EA[{FEXREIE

Social

e

Equal opportunity for all
HEeTs

Diversity and inclusion
ZrtEaEn

Employee capacity building
RABTIRED

Quality assurance

(Em)EE2RE

Intellectual property and data protection
&M B ERE

Labour standards

4 T X H|

Human rights

N

Health and safety
REREZR

Prohibition of corruption and bribery
FILESREEK
Supply chain management

HEEEE

Community investment

HERE

Environment

RiE

Sustainable resources management
AEEERER

Limiting environmental impacts

BERRERE

Equal opportunity for all
RIBRE

Governance
ELIUN
B /A

Legal compliance
AR

Transparency

ERE

Risk management
[ By i B
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Respecting Shareholders of the Group

One of the Group's core values is to embrace business
accountability and transparency through the development of risk
management mechanism, internal control, responsible conduct,
and open communication with the shareholders. The Group
is committed in enhancing shareholders value and increasing
profitability through offering high quality products and services
with optimal resource utilization, while carrying out all operations
within the environmental and social regulatory framewaork.

Sustainability Vision and Development
Goals

The Group endeavours to establish itself as a brand known for
its high-quality products and stringent production process with
respect for the law, human rights, and the environment, while
bringing prosperity to the communities.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Scope

The scope of the report will include the Group’s environmental
and social performance pertaining to its operations in Shenzhen
and Suzhou, which includes the headquarter, manufacturing
plants, and employee living quarters. All activities undertaken by
the Group’s offices in Germany and Hong Kong are excluded due
to their relatively minimal impact on the business.

Report Theme

For this year's report, the theme is “moulding the standard for
excellence” Evolving around this theme, the report accentuates
the Group’s key performances and initiatives that have set the
group apart and revolutionize the production process to put
sustainable development at the center stage.

H M

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

EEXRAKEHIKRR

AEBEZVEERZ ——RERCEEENER
B - BEREREEEARE - AERES - &
BENTTR  WRERRARBSARETT - A%E
BEBREEENERMREALRARE
MHHMERE R B REABENMNE - A
RRRIBRIRE ML @ AR R BIET

IFERESRERER

AEBB AN E—HREREER @ £ERE
BB EERMARE - RERFIEEIL G
uuﬁi‘a °

RN AN S
REHE

BEBERE T AKERRINMERNEE Z
BHERBEAREEHEMRIR - P EEA
B AETHMETIRES BARBEMER
REBRRMEBH AR EREBAIRE R T
SHHENFEMEREER/ - Bk THAR
HEHE -

£

HRNSFNWME TR [PESHRE] -
BEETE  HERETAEENTIEZXREA
RAMEBLE - ELEBREEREEBRAMNL -
WiRETHEEBRE  BABEERRENER
BRAVRED



= - ﬁ&%iﬁ&%ﬂ

Defining the Report Content

This is the Group’s second Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report detailing the Group's sustainability performance
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

The report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 —
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG
Guide") issued by The Stock Exchange. The Group adheres to the
principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency to
report on the measures and performances.

To help readers have a better understanding of the sustainability
approach, the Group has employed a sustainability-specific
analysis as a way to rank and prioritize environmental and social
issues for each of our business unit. Such initiative reflects
the Group's perseverance in its ongoing efforts to embed
sustainability into its business strategy.

An Appendix is attached at the end of the report to help readers
navigate the specific topics corresponding with the ESG Guide.
The details of Corporate Governance are set out under "Corporate
Governance Report" section in this annual report.

Information and Feedback

Your feedback is valuable for the Group's continuous
improvement, all comments and suggestions including feedbacks
on the Group’s overall sustainability strategies are welcome.
Please feel free to reach us at +852 2411 3628.
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ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

Environmental Policy

In alignment with the objective of balancing economic growth
with environmental preservation, the Group is proactively
identifying innovative ways to develop without leaving a
trace on the environment. As a large-scale manufacturer, the
Group recognizes the importance for it to be proactive when
it comes to protecting the environment. Therefore, the Group
is committed in incorporating the following principles in its
operation:

IR & I8

BRIBBUR

AEB A FEQEERERIBERESEEZ
%@ﬁﬂ%m% SHREFTN A NER - T A
REREETZE - (ERAAKBELEHRIER
%L?ﬁ AEBEHB I EIRBIRES BRI
BREBNEELAEE - Bt - NEBEHK
FERATRAIEE R T AKERRER -

e Operate in full compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations.

LETTEETHENREARER

e Manage all activities under the provision of the Environmental Management System conforming with the

standards of ISO14001:2015.

£} 1S014001:2015 BAMBEERBANWRE TERFHEHES o

e All activities are carefully monitored and quantified to assess the Group’s environmental impact and to take

immediate remedial actions when necessary.

FERBEEBASNEE(  LFHEARENRESE - WELES N BREERTE -

¢ All employees are required to act responsibly towards the environment in their daily work activities.

FEREMLAEAETHEEDHIHRERNEEENEE -

¢ Educate stakeholders about the importance of environmental protection and engage all of them in eco-friendly

Production.

HEBNERBRERENERM - URMOMARMREFNEESK -

The Group works tirelessly to mitigate the environmental
impact of its activities through adopting industry best
practices targeted at reducing natural resources consumption
and effective emission management. The Environmental
Management System implemented by the Group provides
the assurance that all activities have minimal negative
environmental impact and optimum environmental
performance.
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Environmental, Health and Safety
Management System

The aforementioned operational principles are entrenched in
the Group’s Environmental, Health and Safety (“EHS") Policy
which also outlines the Group’s commitment to occupational
health and safety. Under the framework of the EHS Policy,
the Group has instituted an Environment, Health and Safety
management system to define the procedures for an eco-
friendly and safe production process. Information about EHS
is posted in conspicuous places visible for all employees.
Furthermore, each department is assigned an EHS officer
to ensure all employees in the department are engaged in
environmental safe practices with full compliance to the
Environmental Policy. During the reporting period, several EHS
knowledge competitions have been organized by the Group
to reinforce employees’ knowledge on EHS while instilling a
culture of environmental stewardship.
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Stepping Up to Commitments

Optimizing Resource Utilization

In part of the Group’s commitment to provide customers with
quality products and promote efficient and optimal use of
natural resources, the Group has incorporated sustainability
throughout all levels of it operations. Key aspects are described
below.

BTHEE
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MBI

Energy Management AR EIE

Energy-Efficient Building Design

When envisioning the design of the buildings at the Shenzhen
manufacturing plant, the Group assures that the buildings
have the best combination of structure and building service
engineering for energy-efficient operation with optimal
functionality and thermal comfort.

Large Window Panels

The buildings are all fitted with large panels of windows,
enabling maximum penetration of natural lights. During the
daytime, the natural lighting is capable of illuminating the
areas with minimal artificial lighting required. In addition to the
enhanced lighting, the windows allow the movement of fresh
air to help meet the buildings’ cooling load.

Cool Roof

The roof tops of the factory buildings are designed using the
cool roofing system that has higher solar reflectance and
thermal emittance than standard roofing.

H M
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During the reporting period, the Group has upgraded some of
the older model appliances and machineries with new energy-
efficient models, including:

Low Impact Lighting

At the Shenzhen plant of the Group, all facilities that require
extended hours of artificial lighting are using low impact LED
as the main light source. The LED lights are significantly more
energy efficient and long-lasting than conventional lighting.
Energy audit showed a reduction of the daily electricity
consumption by 50% in comparison with previous lighting
system.

Replacement of Energy-Efficient Machineries and Appliances
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EASENRINTIRE  FBERERKBHEHA
TREANRMEER TIEFE LEDEAE
ER - LED b EMRAE L - EAT
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( Comparison of Daily Energy Consumption H ﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁ%@tbiﬁ»

(
Previous Lighting System
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Current LED Lighting System
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Energy-Efficient Air Conditioning System

The older air conditioning systems in some of the facilities are

replaced with high- efficiency models.

New Model Plastic Injection Machines

Incremental adjustments such as upgradi

ng machineries

have significantly improved energy efficiency during the

manufacturing process. At the Suzhou pla

nt, three of the

existing plastic injection machines have been updated to
improve overall energy efficiency and productivity. In average,

the new models have reduced hourly energy
38%.

Old Model Energy New Model Energy

Efficiency Power
ERTNERMER
(kW)

35

28
25
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Efficiency Power
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Improving Productivity through Research and Development

BREMANERESEED

Committed in driving advanced technology in the Group's B A sm TR AN S B AR R
sustainable development process, the Group has built a AR - AEEAILES T R E IR S
research and development team devoted to developing BRI AERN - LAIRSAEHARBADHIR
innovative new technology to increase productivity and B E o

minimize environmental impact.

<< Overview of Energy Consumption &8¢ KRS >)
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Total Energy Produced from Fuel

kWh
RERETE In. 1,010,877 58

Total 42 2 In. 48,209,850 t=s

Energy Intensity
SR RE In. 25,907

kWh / Million HKD Revenue
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Water Management k&I

Usage of Recycled Water

Freshwater scarcity is gradually becoming a pressing issue. As
an integral part of the efforts to address this issue, the Group
plans to introduce more water recycling apparatuses in the
manufacturing process to make better use the wastewater
resource, and reduce freshwater consumption. The Group
currently has a duo system water treatment plant to efficiently
process wastewater recycling and reuse in the production
process.

Currently, all the water used in the plastic-injection spraying
process is recycled water from the water treatment plant.
Moreover, a rainwater harvesting tank has been installed
that will be used in the near future to collect rainwater for
non-potable purposes, such as irrigation, flushing toilets and
cleaning.
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(< Overview of Overall Water Consumption F/KEHE >)

Total Water Consumption

T in.

180,497 ™.

Water Intensity
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m®/ Million HKD Revenue
SR BEBREBRA
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Raw and Packaging Materials Management E# g8 REMBIEIE

When designing products, one of the top issues of concern
is the products’ environmental impact. The Group employs
an environmentally friendly approach that accommodates
with both design and sustainability concepts. While satisfying
the customers, the Group is proactively sourcing renewable
materials that meet all of its environmental requirements.

In addition, the Group encourages operational staffs to
prioritize materials reuse. Some of the packaging materials
such as cardboard boxes and wooden crates are utilized to
the maximum extent. In the effort to operate with maximum
efficiency, the data collection scope has been expanded to
capture the data of packaging used for the finished products.
This helps the Group to efficiently manage its resources and
prompts the Group to explore alternative packaging solutions.

ERHELH  ERUBROYE+HES
B - AEERBROAEETEES K
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Total Packaging Material Used for
Finished Products

Sk m At B AT

1,705%™

*The total packaging weight includes reusable packaging materials.
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Emission Highlights

The Group has positioned emission management as a top
environmental priority and a major indicator of the Group's
environmental performance. In addition to environmental
monitoring, the Group has sought the help of external
consultants to conduct quarterly emission assessments in
order to maintain the emission within safe and healthy limit.
The Group's emission performances are highlighted below.

PR BUE

AEBERFHERRARRIEEZBIN
RREBNREEVNEERE - BTES
MRS - REEHBFIMEBEREE
EHBEITAHE - WREFREELZ 2 HE
A o AT RARRENTREE -

Air Pollution Management KR ;5ZYE

The main sources of air pollution are from the manufacturing
process. The Group has summarized in the following the types
of pollutants and their respective mitigation measures:

Types of Air Pollutants Source
RRSRYER AR
Volatile Organic Compound Emitted as a result of

B IS Y] (VOC) plastic being melted

in the plastic injection

P spray moulding, and
r printing processes.
P BERORRAE X AT
BAEMEZRBUREZRBRES
FIEENEHER °

Plastic dust

B PRAD EE Occurred when plastic
. o0 pallets and powders
° ° are dispensed into the
e 0 o o
. moulding machines.
TR A 7 25 2B B ARAR A K R
ZEEKS -
The main source of GHG
emission is from the
Greenhouse Gas electricity consumption
and other air pollutants in the manufacturing
jE=& e (GHG) process. GHG fronj
fuel consumption is
relatively insignificant
> )/ and is mainly resulted

from vehicle usage.

BERENEIZRFZLEE

BRPHENHIE - %ﬁk’*

HEREREAEE
ERANREWHE o
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AEEEELTHARSRREERENH
EBIE - AT RIS RYRIL MBS IA K R R
e

Mitigation Measures

RIRE T

Temperature is carefully
controlled to prevent
polymer degradation as a
result of overheated plastic.
In addition, activated carbon
is used to absorb the VOC.

AR )8 T DAR LE R 2B kB 2
MBS YRR o LLINTERATE
RN AR EEHER o

Exhaust system and dust
collector are used to remove
dust particles from air flow.

ERHRAGRIREMREZRH
HIEEHY o

The aforementioned energy
initiatives have consequently
helped reduced the GHG
emission as a result of lower
energy consumption.

All vehicles in use have met
the level four requirements of
the Chinese emission standard.

Wi FARERERE - FRKRERE - 1k
A B E REHBERK o

PRSI & B2 56 LU B ER 1 B
BESRY P ARE -
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Overview of Carbon Footprint and Other Air Emissions

bz BN At HE R E

4 A
Scope 1 Direct Emission
HE— EEER in. 33 icoze

Scope 2 Indirect Emission

il 7 in. 28,140 tcoze

Total GHG Emission

BB RN . 238,173 oz

GHG Intensity tCO02e /
BRERBIEHRE in. 15 wivion o
Revenue

tCO2e / SHEBMEWA

NOx* in. 96 If:\gﬁ

PM" nm. 123 %

*The emissions data are calculated based on the vehicle fuel consumption data.

U BIE R IR IR BB FERE R -
\ J
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Waste Management EZEY)EIE

The waste reduction strategy is mainly focused on reusing
and recycling waste. The hazardous waste produced in the
manufacturing process include paint slag, paint thinner,
lubricant oil, resin, ink cartridge, oil sludge, chemical spray,
and wastewater sludge. These materials are categorized and
carefully stored in a designated onsite storage facility prior to
collection by a licensed recycler.

AREBERIBEEYNRETIESEZYNE

RANBNA - EEEBRETELNEERE

%%EQ@E§E L BE BRI FREKITT

E EE=NAEEEKREEZAEHI R
W/ NOFRRIEE BRI o

Each manufacturing facility is set with a designated area for waste sorting and disposal

BREEERBHRBEENEN D %HJEIEEBZ

H M
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The non-hazardous wastes can be classified into three categories:

2D

Plastic by-products

These materials such as plastics nozzles clogs and injection-
molding defects are generated from the production process
and are mostly recyclables. They are collected by recycling
company and can be used by other plastic manufacturers.

Packaging waste

Majority of these wastes derived from the packaging of the
raw materials purchased. In order to reduce the packaging
waste, the Group encourages some of the suppliers to
prioritize reusable packaging materials.

BB EEm

HEEEMEEREERET  ABHRA
BIUCH) - GRZE R BSA LA MIREEE iy © 15 LERE
W08 [ e ] BE EE A AT 4 EL A 2B B B o R
BETHENE -

KERY

SRR ZRRNEM B o KR
PRERERY  AEEZBHERELER
A EEERNBEME

These cardboard boxes are returned to suppliers for reuse after unpackaging

ELERBEHE

Q

RASHOR Bl Aa BB B3 E A
~

General Refuse

Household waste from employee dormitory and office waste
are sorted and collected by licensed recycling companies. In
addition, trimming from the plants are regularly collected to be
used as composts in the company owned farms.

A SEBLIR
JKQ BTEEMMRENRERZYHEK

AR W SR o 1IN - BRI EHE B
HSZE TER AT RERELE -

RTIEE () BRLR —E—LFFR
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The wastewater from the production process is collected by a HEEBERFEANEK  Si—UiE%R - B
wastewater management company. Domestic wastewater is BEBEEME=ZF AR - £/E5KEIE
discharged into the local government managed sewage system BIREEZEREATHRERZS -

after the wastewater has been treated and met the discharge

standard.

Overview of Waste Data EX¥)EEHIE

f tonnes \
Plastic 22 in. hbh4 I
. tonnes
Metal & in. 2 9 1 g
tonnes
Cardboard #E& in. 1 1 2 I
. 2 1 tonnes
Other Materials =15} in. [
Total Non-Hazardous Waste 9 7 8 tonnes
BEHENEE in. 0
Non-Hazardous Waste Intensity 0 t:‘::s; L
evenue
RMEBREYRE in. a g s EEEEEEA
Total Hazardous Waste 5 5 9 tonnes
EEREMeE in.
. t / Milli
Hazardous Waste Intensity onnes/ TTHIon
N I HKD Revenue
BEBEYEE Hw W/ S E AU
\_
In addition to these targeted mitigation measures, the Group has B T IR R N - AEBEE
engaged in high density planting and farming in the plots of lands FI TR EZA i FErTeZEREE - K
surrounding the Shenzhen plant. The Group hopes to offset some SEFLEBAEKBREKERS REREEE
of its GHG emission through the carbon sequestration process WE - WERKRESAIEERME -

and achieve measurable results in the future.
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DELIVERING THE BEST TO THE
CUSTOMERS

Product Quality Management

The Group has established a Quality Management System
("QMS") for planning, setting standard operating procedures,
and measuring business performance inline with the
requirements of the 1ISO9001 Quality Management System.
The QMS provides an integrated and structured approach to
improve planning processes, drive execution, and develop
transparent business processes within the Group. It is a valued
process and a cornerstone of the Group’s commitment to
ensure product and service quality and customer satisfaction.

Quality reviews for all products and services are scheduled,
conducted, and documented prior to commercialization. These
steps are repeated periodically to ensure the products have
met the quality standards. The main objective is to verify the
effectiveness of the risk assessment and risk management
processes, and to identify opportunities for continuous
improvement.

In cases where a complaint has been received, the Group
undertakes the following measures to handle the complaint:

e Categorize the complain and refer it to the responsible party

IR D B RRGREES

FZN T —E/FAI1S09001 & =&
RERMNEE2EEZRAH ( [QMS] )
AR#HE REETHRENETEXEBE
WMo HEBRBRRMET —ELKEMAR
MR FERLEREBIE - HEET - I
RASBEHFREEHAEE B —HEZE
WRE R AEERRE®MRBE
EUREFPMEENER -

FEERNRGNEEFHSEEERR
EERZAEHIERELF - AEEEHE
TEENE  UERERZIEERE -
HENTEANERRERRFEMEE
MIZR AR - W REFERTITRNE
B o

EWEEFOBRT  REBELERRAT
BV HE bR IR AR

e Conduct formal investigation while conceptualizing an appropriate solution

ETEXRE  AREREENRALTR

* Implement the solution

BieRA R

e Follow up with the customer to ensure full satisfaction

HEFRE BRZ2WE

During the reporting year 0.13% of the products were recalled
and 6 individual complaints have been received all due to
exterior or size issues.

The Group welcomes all stakeholders to raise their concerns
regarding various litigation matters, including, but not limited
to, product liability, patent infringement, and antitrust claims.
Feedbacks from stakeholders are carefully assessed and
valorised by the Group for continuous improvement.

EHREFERN - F0.13% HEREE B K
W B 6 1578 S #5257 &R = B R IR SR T R
BEE o

lllit

AEBECAFAENEARE R EH SRR
AREENET  BEETRREREE F
MREMBFORER - AEBEHMAREER
SETHANGEMESR - X AECE -

RTIEE () BRLR —E—LFFR
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The Group is honoured to be a recipient of several excellence awards in
recognition of our exceptional product quality and services.

REBERKREFENESZHAMRE - URBAEESBNEREEN R

Mann + Hummel
2017 Supplier of the Year Award for Outstanding Performa

2017 FEHHRIBHERD

H M
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GN Audio (Jabra)
Quality Supplier Award

BHHERR

Pegatron Corporation Inventec Appliances Corp.
2017 Excellent Supplier Award 2017 Excellent Manufacturer Award

FMEBESREREOERAE REZRDERAA
2017 FEEFHERE 2017 B R e
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The Group purchases goods and services from a wide range of
suppliers, and endeavours to create a diverse pool of suppliers
to satisfy the different needs of the customers and sustain the
economic development of their diverse business scope. The
Group’s supply chain is managed through a competitive bidding
process which includes a criterion for evaluating supplier’s
sustainability practices.

The Group views the suppliers as important partners in the
business development process. It is therefore vital to have
the suppliers share the Group’s commitment in regards to
occupational health and safety, environmental stewardship,
and respect for human rights. All suppliers are required to set
safety and health goals, engage in resource saving practices,
establish waste and emissions reduction management
strategies and operate with an ethical mindset. The Group
encourages the suppliers to have their own sustainability
program to ensure compliance with the regulatory
requirements.

All above measures, management transparency, and integrity
contribute to the enhancement of the quality of the products
and services for full satisfaction of customers.

The Group has carefully curated customer data and information
to ensure no confidential information is leaked. As a part of
the QMS, the data protection system and security procedures
stipulate the process to protect individual privacy and
safeguard commercially sensitive information.

AEBEETRHEEEEREE MRS - I
PR —EZ TR HER  REEAT
PTRFBLOREHEBREP Z T %1%
R - AREHERTRBHFIERIEN
PBIETTERE - A eEf it EmnE
BRRA -

AEEBEERRAARERHERBRET
MEEAERH - At AEEERHEHE
BRERENZE BRRMABERLEIHR
& MARERSCEAEREERTH YR
EMEFEEIR - SHHERER - RILEYM
HAFEEA B W RGERES - NEEE
HIEREE QAR ERR S - ARRS
BIEMRER o

A LA - B ERANEREHEA
RiREASENEMNRBHNES - EXE
FmE °

AEEROLEETPEMNESR  BIRLE
BRMME S HRURE - 1EA QMS — 882 » &
BRERBMZERFHIE T REREARL
MR » WIREREHEE -

(

Total Number of
Registered Patents
Received in 2017
2017 FEMERLEE

\

37

J

Under the effective management of the QMS, there were no
cases of noncompliance with laws and regulations concerning
intellectual property rights.
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OUR EMPLOYEES
OUR FAMILY

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group believes that a sustainable future is not just about
optimizing environmental performance, but also to provide
everyone with the equal opportunities to create, innovate,
and develop without barriers. The Group strives to facilitate an
optimal working environment for all employees to build their
capacity and provide opportunities for them to grow into their
full potential.

A dynamic workforce has been created through the collective
strengths and talents of different individuals to drive the Group
towards excellence. Assessments are regularly conducted
to determine if additional employee is required to cope with
the growing business. The recruitment policy provides the
guideline to ensure the recruitment process is transparent and
consistently fair.

With the Group's important role in improving the living quality
of employees, the Group strives to provide all employees
with a competitive remuneration package, reasonable working
hours, and holidays to promote work-life balance.

The employment of child and forced labour is strictly
prohibited. The human resources department assures the full
compliance with all labour practices by conducting regular
screening of recruits and reviewing our hiring process.

M E T
B RE

MEMSE THRE

AEERR  AFEBRROKRKNEER
BERRER  LERSEADENER
B AE - BRI ERER - AEEHS
RAARTRA—EABRENTERER &
AN - X RMMREETED %
BEINKE -

BREATRATNESMTEE  AEE
BET —XRMAENNEIRML  HFA
SEEREHNRE - BBTEHETH
- NEEEEHBEBRINANERRKE
EAKBEEBHNEER o BB A E
RTHEREATFRENEERA -

AEEERNTEINETEETHEEE
EmAe - BRRE  AKREEHRET
RUEABEFNOHFMFE - SEOITIER
EIFIMRER - DA(RE THEEL A )R T 1 o

AEBBEEEBEIMBASHAL - A
HERBFIBBEMHERT  YBREARN
SENEERRE BRAKEETHES
grAl -
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Total Number of Workforce & T4 A &

4,246

Employee Gender Distribution (%) & T4 5|5 (%)

f 50, 50,0

H Mo
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Employee Age Distribution (%) 2 T F# 5% (%)

Age
g 40

3 % Age

52,
ey 18:30 45,
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Staff Capacity Building and Career
Development

Continuous learning is the key to excellence. The Group
encourages the employees to refine their skills by providing
them with trainings and on-the-job learning opportunities. A
capacity building scheme has been implemented to enroll
all employees in continuous professional development to
achieve self-actualization and innovation. The Group has also
provided different types of training to correspond with the
job requirements and employees’ needs. Professional and
technical information is also made available through knowledge
sharing sessions. Training hours are assigned according to
employees’ seniority except the frontline and entry level
employees. These employees are usually young adults who
have just entered the workforce, and the Group wants to give
them as much learning opportunities as possible as well as the
freedom to attend training when they see fit.

In addition, employees are required to attend training
on Environmental Health and Safety to ensure their
full engagement in safe production and promotion of
environmentally-friendly workplace.

)

ETRENERNBERE

#%%jaﬁtm%ﬁ AREBHEEE TR

RIS B AN A B 22 M = SR B L PI D BB o
FERA AEBEETHIARESHET
ﬁ%ﬁf LAFE D 348 B T H)B AL & All3T 40

o AREBJMEHT 7T EER R EIIARL &
almlﬁxxﬂ o AN+ BB HEA
HOZME %hﬁlﬁﬁgiﬁﬁﬂ
B BR T ATAMMALE T - IR RERE
BTHMETOR - B8 TEE M AR
MEFERA @ AEEFE AR ERER
ZHEBEBERS A THMEREERAREE
RIESFIERR -

Britzsh - BTIRE 28 EHS 153l - iR
PHRAR A E - WRRBEK —ERF
B TSGR ©

H M
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Compassion for the Employees

Many of the employees are migrant workers and it is important
to help them feel at home during their employment with the
Group. On top of the competitive remuneration package, the
following additional benefits are provided to the employees:

TK Compassion Fund

The Group has continued to run its Compassion Fund program
to provide financial assistance to the employees facing
unexpected financial challenges. During the reporting period,
a total of RMB100,000 has been donated to three employees.
Since launching the program in 2009, a total of RMB446,000
has been donated.

FEEET

REZHBTHRINEAE - FUEEEE T
ARERFE_AXRHEEEN KR TEA
BFENNFHEFEN  AEEE RS TRMH
ARSI AR A

RIBLES

AREBEEERFTIEOESLAR AR
KON R B TR IR B) - A IEHREP
M ANEEBLEE T AR 100,000 7T
=BT - %IEH H 2009 FAIH A -
IEBhEEEE =R AR 446,000 T ©

Staff residence and day care Sfaff
services for young parents < The
SZpe Als
ETFBER SR
) H T RRTS
ao”i\\'\%
W
o @_5&@\
7%
Onsite récreationg| facilities
. (e.g. karaoke room
& ;
o rbeque areas, Vegetable farm)
cultural fFestival " ﬁ&%};ﬁ%gﬁﬁ
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Employee Wellness

Preventing work-related accidents and providing a safe working
environment for all employees is of paramount importance
to the Group. The goal is to create an optimized safe working
environment that assures employees’ health and safety. This is
embedded in the EHS plan, which is developed to provide the
blueprint for safe production process.

An EHS Management Committee is established to supervise
and implement the plan. The Committee members usually
meet with employees to engage them in discussion about
safety measures and issues they have encountered at
work. Subsequently, the Committee establishes a series of
management directives for all departments to follow. This is
especially important in our safety management system. For
instance, when one of the production line acquires a new
piece of machine, the guideline for operation safety can be
modified and updated. All employees are thus provided with
the appropriate safety equipment and adequate training for
their job.

Information about EHS is also posted in conspicuous places
visible for all employees. Each department is assigned with
an EHS officer to ensure all employees in the department are
engaged in safe practices with full compliance to the EHS
policy. During the reporting period, the Group has organized
several EHS knowledge competitions to improve employees’
knowledge on EHS and reinforce the Group's EHS culture.

BETEE
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Moreover, the Group has actively engaged the employees in
health promotion activities. The Group's wellness program consists
of a free annual health check to raise employees’ awareness
about their own health status. The Group has always encouraged
employees to engage in an active lifestyle by organizing sporting
events and providing onsite sports recreation facilities.

Mental health is another aspect that the Group deeply cares
about. Onsite facilities such as farms and green landscapes have

Btz oh - RNEBEEEGHEE S TSR ER
BEE) - NEBOEFE 2 RERBNFER
Fpd - PAINsRE TH B S REMNKER
AEETNEESEMREBESTRHEBERER
Heex B B TEI TSR AETR -

DR ERRFEEE TRENS—F
He AREARZYTRENGERBER

provided a serene space for employees to relax and rewind during i REESNEEZEE TERES NGRS
their breaks. Ly o
f
\_ J
\
Q :
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Communicating Expectations and Needs

When it comes to communicating with employees, the Group
takes a laissez-faire approach of which employees of all levels
can freely share their opinions and concerns without fear of
retribution.

The Group's open-door policy encourages employees to
express their views, questions or concerns directly to the
Company management. Through creating an environment of
professionalism and respect, the Group hopes to foster staff
engagement, innovation, and excellence.

BEBEMER

HEESTHABIE  NEBEARBONE
B ETERRNEIRARRSZECH
BRMEEE - TR OREE

AEENANERREBE TERAEERE
REEMERIERE - BBET —EAFXEK
EREENTHERE  AEEFEEEET
EVERRIE - BIRT B 2 KRR o

@ Communication Channels Ei&EZEHE
@ Intended Purpose FEHIH Y

¢ Staff Suggestion Box
THEAERRME
e Complaint Hotline

¢ Chairman Email
EEEFEF

These meetings are organized at the end

of every fiscal period to report on the
performance and development of the Group
as well as solicit feedback from the employees.
BLERESEZEHRER  UREEAKE
WERBENBERER  LHRETHRE -

e Newsletter
ROIEA

For employees who would like to communicate
sensitive matters or report malpractice can do so
discreetly through these communication channels.

HNEREERRBRIERTIETANET
ALUBBELEEREEEMER -

¢ Quarterly General
Meetings

EEAE

The monthly newsletter provides
employees with information about latest
activities and inspirational stories to
motivate employees for success.

B ANEERSE TRHNEENSIEEB
BEHE - USEE TR ERY
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PROMOTING ETHICS AND
INTEGRITY

The Group has taken steps to ensure all internal stakeholders
and suppliers have strictly adhered to the company’s anti-
corruption standards. The Group’s elaborated ethics policy and
procedures prevent any violations of anti-corruption laws and
regulations, as well as the Group’s own code of conduct.

Regular trainings and discussions are carried out with the staff
on subjects related to anti-corruption, ethics, and business
integrity. All new employees are subjected to mandatory
training on our code of conduct.

Employees and all involved stakeholders are provided with
discreet means of communicating confidential information and
voice their concerns of any malpractice. The Group ensures
that all genuine concerns are investigated and appropriate
actions are taken where necessary.

EXTENDING CARETO THE
COMMUNITY

The Group believes its responsibilities go far beyond the
economic contribution, and recognizes the long-term
positive impact that it can have on society through its
social contribution. During the financial year, the Group has
participated in various community initiatives, in particular
activities involving youth development and community
building. During the reporting period, the financial contribution
to community initiatives is estimated to about HK$2,046,000.

The following community activities are the main ones that the
Group has participated:

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Hong Kong Productivity Council -

Industrial Technology Youth Experience Progra

EREENRER - TERNS FRREE

L\ )

In partnership with Hong Kong Productivity Council, the Group has organized an experience program for a group
of youths from Hong Kong to learn about the manufacturing process and factory operations in Mainland China.
FEEHEEBEENRERGE  BRT —EASESEMRNBRIE UEBIEAAENREXENTIRE
BB -

Hong Kong Junior Police Call - Experience Program

BV FE - iRkt

@ ,

Fifty students and teachers have been invited to visit the Group’s operation in Shenzhen to learn about
the automation process in the manufacturing sector.

AEBRABFTETEMERINZER  BERREXZNBHLRE
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Hong Kong Students’ Visits to HK-PRD Industries —
Student Exchange Program

BEEFELER e @E R / =BT X - BA Nl =

L1 )

The experience program provides students from Hong Kong'’s Vocational Training Council an
opportunity to learn about how high-tech has been adopted in the manufacturing process. The
Group hopes to encourage student to learn outside the classroom in practice.

ZERAADSEBREIRENBLERHET AKX ERBESHRELEEBRETNEM - K
SEFL2EMAUBHEARUININAE  FHRERE -

Robocon Hong Kong Contest

EBRELERBARE

| )

The Group has provided sponsorship for the contest, which enables young talents to gain experience
in robotics innovations and to showcase their innovative ideas through their creations.

AEESLEEHER  EEFATRRTERAFEEBANER  TEBOMANAERTMBMAN
RIF AL -
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Sowers Action - Challenging 12 Hot

EEITE - PhEL 12 AN

Q :

On 22 October 2017, the Group sent 30 participants to participate in the charity marathon
organized by Sowers Action. The event is a fund-raising activity to provide financial aid
for students in rural China.

R2017 510 A 22 8 AKEKE 30 F2EESMAEBTHEAMANEZ FHMRLL
B -ZEREDEATEERNBERESHEED -

Oxfam Trailwalker 2017

LIS - RI1TE 2017 F

Q ,

The Group has participated in the initiative to show support and raise funds for Oxfam’s poverty
alleviation and emergency relief projects in Africa and Asia.

FEBEEZ2ELEHALREEFMNNTNNRENESREREERES -
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LOOKING FORWARD

As a leader in the industry, the Group is committed to setting a standard of
excellence in sustainability through the continuous commitment to improve
business practices and facilities. Together with employees, the Group is committed
in the promotion of sustainable development and incorporate innovative sustainable
practices into its daily operations to make the world a better place.

RE

ERTEANEEE  AEERIRNFESEARENERERMRE -
BYFSHENAHEEREE ASE2RETHARRETHELRR
YHEFHAKEERRARTELT  EHRABEEMEL -
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Awards and Recognitions

BRI MR A

Award / Recognition #£15 / 537 Organizer £

é”;gﬂ;%pger Award GN Audio (Jabra)

Supplier of the Year for Outstanding Performance Mann+Hummel
FEHGHRRMHER

Supplier Excellence — Customer Satisfaction Yanfeng

BEEIER =

2017 Supplier Excellence of the Year Pegatron Corporation

2017 FEBF AR 52 MEH S RO BR A A
2017 Excellent Manufacturer Award Inventec Appliances Corp.
2017 18 R s 22 HEERDABRA A

Governance &l

National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment
Excellence Tax Payment and Turnover Award
2EEBFIIEREDE - EEPER

2017 Guangming New District Excellent Efficacy
Engineering Examplary Organization Honorary Title

JERFETIER 2017 F 8 2 AR WA 2 T2 S B /B 4 S8 B 5

China Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment

TESNERECE RS

Shenzhen Guangming New District Quality Office
RINTH KA R E 258 & Y

Shenzhen Science and Technology Innovation Committee,
Shenzhen Municipal Finance Commission, Shenzhen
Municipal office, SAT, and Shenzhen Local Taxation Bureau
RITRREIFZE S  RYTMHBEES  AITER
i 7 B AR Y T b 75 7R A% B

National New and High Technology Enterprise Certificate
BIRSHM Mt EES

Environment &5

EcoChallenger — Corporate Environmental Leadership Trele el Bt (e e Lz

Award P =
BREFLE-CERRALSR THETER ARA
Community &

Outstanding Organization Award — 2017 Guangming
New District, Fenghuang Office "Building a Civilized City
—The first Community Sports Event"

2017 FREAFERERER (BIREXBHTFE—EE
RegzEel SF5ARKE

Shenzhen Guangming New District Fenghuang Office
RN T e BR 7 [ B 2L % 5 A

RTEE (BK) ERAF —T—tFF8 91



“ Environmental, Social and Governance Report

APPENDIX — HKEX REPORTING GUIDE INDEX
fifek - BEXR P GBRIR - g RERRS1ES)) Ro

ESG Aspect EH Statement/Section =& / ZRA Page No. B

A. Environment 1215

A1 Emission HE 41

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance
of laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group during the reporting

A1l General Disclosure —#&# #& - 68 -72
REEN EERNREHNEGEMEREAEERE
RERZENEREERMEOZEE -
The type of emissions and respective emissions data o o
A1.1 E Highlight 68 —-72
HE TR R AR O mission Highlights H7##
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) o L .
A1.2 E Highligh
RERBAANE GHE) B (WER) BF mission Flghlionts A *
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) L o .
[E Highligh 72
FEERERENEE (AMHE) R (MER) BE mission Highlights HH 85
A1l1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Emission Highlights #EM 2% 72

FEAEREREYHASE (UEGE) R (WER) BE

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved Emission Highlights #Ent &% 68 -72
HIURE R E e R PTIERR -

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved

REREEREEFEIN L  AEEEBREEERay oo Hohlights HEH B 08-72
% °

A2 Use of Resources & & £

A2 General Disclosure —f&# 5% Optimizing Resource Utilization &£ & 5 1€ /FH 62 - 67

Direct and/ or indirect energy consumption by in total and
intensity

AT pEmEsmART () MEER (W R mEe (00 ong fesource Utlizaton @ERRRA 65
FEFREEFE) REE

A2.2 Water :onijmptlon In total and intensity Optimizing Resource Utilization &1k & 71 A 66
BREKEREE

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved Optimizing Resource Utilization &1k & 5 (€ 62 - 64

LR E A st E LTS R -
A2.4 Description of water efficiency initiatives and results

achieved. L L e
e SR AR L A R - R Akt m o Resource Utllzation EERDREER 66
SRR -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) Optimizing Resource Utilization &/ &R & 67

LR MATABEMENESE (LAETE)
A3The Environment and Natural Resources I8 1% | X R & R

A3 General Disclosure —#&# & Environmental Stewardship %% &2 60

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

A3.1 manage them. Environmental Stewardship &% &1 60-72
TS EBHRBERAARERNEATEREENERBHBY
ZHITE) o
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ESG Aspect [EH

B. Social i1+t &

B1 Employment EfE &% T E iR

General Disclosure —f&# &

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical location
RUER - BIEER - FaER RitEE DM E BB

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region
MR - EEER - FRRARRINESSHEBRALE

B2 Health and Safety 2 E 8% 2

B2

General Disclosure —f&# &

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
ETEREMET B AB K=

Lost days due to work injury
EATGERTIEBE

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored
TR AR B R R RET 2 - AREERTRER A

B3 Development and Training 2% f& & 3% 3l

B3

B3.1

B3.2

General Disclosure —f&# %

Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category

RUERIREEBER (WaREEE PRAEEES) 250X
EEAEDE

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category
R REBERIED - BEEE TR RS

Statement/Section Z£7 / &R

During the reporting period, the Group is

not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations concerning its
employment practices.

EWEHA - AEE W RBEREAERELS THEE
BDERER ©

Employment and Labour Standards
MEETIRE

Female %% : 34%

Male H1% : 20%

Age Fi#k 18-30 : 35%

Age Fiik 31-45 : 18%

Age 45 and Above F#e 45 EA E : 1%

The calculation for above data includes the total
number of contractors in the financial period.
A FEBNHEES T AMBEARARETA
o

The Group has complied with all laws and
regulations relating to occupational health and
safety.
REBEEETHAEEBREERNREE@OERE
e

There were no work-related fatalities during the
reporting period.
REHANTERTEBEREBORTES -

The Group currently does not report on the lost
days due to work injury, however, the Group
plans to disclose the information in the future.
AEBEBAYARERLGMIBRANIER - BF
SEENARRBEEERER -

Employee Wellness & T 25

Staff Capacity Building and Career
Development
BTREERABEER

The Group is currently developing its data
collection system in this area and plans to
disclose this information in the future

N BB T 1R a2 B A BUR R E - AT &I A
KFEE IS E

The Group is currently developing its data
collection system in this area and plans to
disclose this information in the future

AEE B 1R 52T A BRI E E - 5T E A
KB BR U A5 B

Page No. B £

77

78-79

83 -84

83 -84

80
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ESG Aspect [ZH Statement/Section Z &) / &R
B. Social 1t &

B4 Labour Standard %% T % §

B4 General Disclosure — & # 5=

Description of measures to review employment practices
B4.1  to avoid child and forced labour

HE R T RIS B I A e e LA R E T R84 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
B4.2  when discovered

i A 7E 35 3R 38 AR 1B R H BR B B 15 00 FTERER Y 25 5%

B5 Supply Chain Management {t f& 75 & 12

B5 General Disclosure — & # &

Number of suppliers by geographical region
12 [ &l 5 B FE R 24 B

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,

number of suppliers where the practices are being
B5.2  implemented and monitored

B AR EEEAIES - mERTE RSN HERR

B URBHEORITRERA =

B6 Product Responsibility Z= f =

B6 General Disclosure —#&# &

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
B6.1 recalls for safety and health reasons
EEXDEXERBHTEALLERREHRMABKNE DT

Number of products and service related complaints
B6.2  received and how they are dealt with

BREANE DR R HIRFE B AR EH X

Description of practices relating to observing and
B6.3  protecting intellectual property rights

i B 4 R R RS R B E RS B DI

Description of quality assurance process and recall
B6.4  procedures

i AR E B R E B AR R

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
B6.5  policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

HEBEERHRIEMFLE
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The Group strictly adheres to all laws and
regulations prohibiting the use of forced and child
labour. The Human Resources department has
undertaken all necessary measures to prevent
and resolve any susceptible practices that do not
conform the labour laws.
AEEBREERAEARBATINELWETHES BN
ERIRE o ANBRIPIB BT B EMREHENR LE
MRS LEENEH -

Employment and Labour Standards
BEMLTIEE

Employment and Labour Standards
BEMLTIEE

Driving our Supply Chain Towards Business
Sustainability
R R R B AR AR LB R
The Group currently does not report on the
number of suppliers.
AEEBRRBEREHERNHE
e Driving our supply chain towards Business
Sustainability
B R R E RS AE L ERE
e Raw and Packaging Materials Management
JRAA L B S R B

The Group is not involved any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the Group concerning
product responsibility. In cases where a complaint
is received, formal investigations are launched and
appropriate follow-up actions will be taken.
REETNSREMERHASEERREREATZEN
SEREREM o EREMEMHRFE - BFTE REEITE
HAE RREEEANRETE -

The Group's stringent quality control measures
have ensured that were no products sold being
recalled for safety and health reasons.
AEERENESFHEEBRLIAHENERER
2YERRARKBME -

Product Quality Management
EmEEEE

Data Protection and Intellectual Property
BURRERAHERE

Product Quality Management
EmEBER

Data Protection and Intellectual Property
BURRE R AHERE

Page No. B2

77

77

77

76

76

67

73

73
76
78
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ESG Aspect [Z[H

Statement/Section = £7 / ZFH

Page No. B £

B. Social {t=

B7 Anti-Corruption X &5

B7 General Disclosure —f&# %

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases
BSRHHNHE MFAER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
B7.2 procedures, how they are implemented and monitored
FERA R B S i A R RIE R

B8 Community Investment tt & & &

B8 General Disclosure —f&# %

Focus areas of contribution
BRiE

Resources contributed
A ER

During the reporting operiod, the Group is not
aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations.

RIEHA - AEBEWEFRUAEERRKEALEN
EREREREE -

During the reporting period, there was no
concluded legal case regarding corruption.

RREHA  TEFEREAEELES TEFZHFN
ESEE

Communicating Expectations and Needs
BB E G K

Promoting Ethics and Integrity

HEE) BB

Extending Care to the Community

IR E 1t [ B R

Extending Care to the Community
R R A BRI

Extending Care to the Community
FhJR # 4t  f) B 13E

RTIEE () BRLR —E—LFFR
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWREE

The Board has pleasure in presenting the annual report and the
audited accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
Principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 12 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis on revenue and operation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 by principal activities and places of
operation is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review for the year ended 31 December
2017, which includes a discussion on principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars
of important events affecting the Group during the year, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business
is set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
In addition, discussions on the Group's environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group are also set out in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 125.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK12 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on 23 May 2018, amounting
to a total of approximately HK$99,991,000. The proposed final
dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. The final dividend, if approved, is expected to
be paid on 1 June 2018.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM
to be held on 14 May 2018, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 9 May 2018 to 14 May 2018, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company must ensure
that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 8 May 2018.

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 21 May 2018 to 23 May 2018, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
be qualified for the proposed final dividend, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company must ensure that all share transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong at
the above address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 18
May 2018.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years is set out on page 208. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2017 are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ report (continued)
sEgREE(E)

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the Company's share capital during the
year are set out in Note 20 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of
the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Notes 20, 22, 23 and Note
33(a) to the financial statements and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 187 to 190, page 204, and pages 128 to
129 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands amounted to approximately HK$528,159,000
(2016: HK$506,286,000), of which approximately HK$99,991,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 were around HK$2,046,000 (2016:
HK$2,165,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, Mr. Ho
Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong will retire at the
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

PARTICULARS OF BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of biographies of directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 27 to 34 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 34 to the
financial statements.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ report (continued)
sEgREE(E)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20
December 2016, which may be terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors for a term of three years
commencing from 20 December 2016, unless terminated by either
party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 32 (Related Party Transactions) to the
financial statements, no director nor a connected entity of a
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year
under Review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements and the objects of or one of the objects of
such arrangements is/are to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities, including debentures, of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEeWmEE(8&)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS EEEN

No contract concerning the management and administration of the REEWEII S FEBEBAA RIS F
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was MFEEBIHZ2EBRITHRZEX °
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING EZHNE#H - HERORESTRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES 3%

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the directors of the MR2017F 128318 » ARRARIEZBRA QR
Company in the shares of the Company which were recorded in DA BEER AR EEMN([ELER
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the BB 1401 ]) 35258 N Z IEFTIE N &R
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"), or as otherwise Az - ERBEETAMNEERRF]
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the NG FTHIERS IA T -

Model Code, were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company RAQBRDHER
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interests Number of shares the Company”
R BRHBEA
EEgE B RntE idvip 4= | RETDLL"
Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li") Interests in controlled corporations
(Note 1) 460,920,000 55.32%
BHREE(EHREE]D REEEEER (1)
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael Interests in controlled corporation
("Mr. Yung”) (Note 2) 55,620,000 6.67%
SEALE(SEE]D RGBS (iE2)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu Interests in controlled corporation
("Mr. Lee") (Note 3) 53,640,000 6.44%
FRBAEE(TERBRE]) RiEH AR R (HE3)

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR 101
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Directors’ report (continued)
EEeWREEE)

Notes:

These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix") (for
371,520,000 shares) and Lead Smart Develooment Limited (“Lead Smart”)
(for 89,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of Eastern Mix is
owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, respectively;
and Lead Smart is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and
Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr. Li, he is deemed to be interested
in these shares held by these two corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer Union”), a

corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Yung.

These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal
Times”), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in shares or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which has been recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the following corporations had interests
in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as known by the

Company:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

Capacity/Nature of interests

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEeWmEE(8&)

FERRRRO R EBR G ER

R20179F12A831H » ARAAREBEEFEENMPEE
RPIEIBCKERTEERARAIFTENERS
softFTac sk s s A R AP Al - A REBEAR

AARE% A FH B EBEITIRARRERS ¢

RARBRBHEFRE

Number of shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company”

RAER TN

BRERHE Bin EmHE v gE| BET DL
Eastern Mix (Note 1) Beneficial owner 371,520,000 44.59%
ER(MaET) EmlEAA
Lead Smart (Note 1) Beneficial owner 89,400,000 10.73%
ZE(HaET) ERBEAA
Cheer Union (Note 2) Beneficial owner 55,620,000 6.67%
BRI (Ftat2) EmlEAA
Normal Times (Note 3) Beneficial owner 53,640,000 6.44%
wks (#13E3) ERBEAA
Value Partners Group Limited Interest in controlled corporations

(Note 4) 68,436,000 8.21%
BREEBRAF(ME4) ZEHAE S
Value Partners High-Dividend Beneficial owner

Stocks Fund 64,410,000 7.73%
Value Partners High-Dividend BEmEA A

Stocks Fund
FIL Limited (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporations 42,684,000 5.12%

FIL Limited(/#12#5)

S EEE R
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Directors’ report (continued)
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Notes:

1.

The above interests of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

The above interests of Cheer Union were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Yung in the above section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”.

The above interests of Normal Times were also disclosed as the interests of
Mr. Lee in the above section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”.

These 68,436,000 shares were held by Value Partners Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which in turn was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Value Partners Group Limited. Accordingly, Value Partners
Hong Kong Limited and Value Partners Group Limited were deemed to be
interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

These 42,684,000 shares were held by FIL Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited, which was indirectly wholly owned by FIL Limited through a
series of wholly-owned subsidiaries. Accordingly, FIL Limited was deemed to be
interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person,
other than the directors of the Company whose interests and short
position are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had any
interests or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register of interests required to be
kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November
2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants (including employees,
executives or officers, directors including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of the
Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain high caliber
employees.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the
Company’s listing (20 December 2013) and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The total number of securities of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 73,340,000 shares,
representing approximately 8.80% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any
grant or further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A grant
of share options under the Share Option Scheme to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued, upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding),
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determined by the directors, save
that such a period shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of offer of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of offer of the share options, which must be a
date on which the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing
in securities; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Details of the movements of share options under the Share Option

Directors’ Report (continued)
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REZE2017F12 8318 ILFE - BREE

Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows: TZHERESESEEOT -
Number of options
BREHA
Outstanding Exercised  Cancelled/ OQutstanding Exercise
as at Granted during lapsed as at 31 price per
Name or category of 1 January during the year during  December share Exercise
option holder Date of grant 2017 the year (Note2) the year 2017 (HKS) period
Ra017% R2017%
BRESAA 1A1H ERfTE  EREE/ 12A18  BROFE
#ERER BiLAH AE FRARE (H2) ¥ Ry (Bx) yid
Executive directors
HTES
Mr. Li 29 December 2014 3,000,000 — (3,000,000) — — 1.61 (Note 1)
THREE 20145128298 (Hit1)
Mr. Yung 29 December 2014 1,860,000 —  (1,860,000) = — 1.61 (Note 1)
by 2014%12529A (Hit1)
Mr. Lee 29 December 2014 1,800,000 — (1,800,000) — — 1.61 (Note 1)
FRIBEE 2014%12829R (Hit1)
Total
a8 6,660,000 — 16,660,000 = =
Notes: Htat -
1. The exercise period of the share options granted is from 29 December 2014 to 1. ERHBRENTTIEEAZ2014E12H29H220174F

2.

28 December 2017, both dates inclusive.

12A28H(BEEEMA) °

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 2. REBETEBRENZHADRRGINEFLKT

the dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$3.16 per share.

BEAER3.16/8T °

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in
favour of the Company (on behalf of itself and the Group) dated
29 November 2013 (the “Deed”). Pursuant to the Deed, each of
the Covenantors shall procure their respective associates not to
directly or indirectly engage in any business in competition with
the existing businesses of the Group. Relevant information on
the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”. The Company has
received confirmations from the Covenantors of their compliance
with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that they
have fully complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December
2017. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed
has been complied with and enforced in an effective manner.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year. The directors confirmed that those
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. All applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the proposed annual caps for those transactions
are expected to be less than 5%. Those transactions are exempt
from shareholders’ approval under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of those continuing connected transactions in 2017:

TREJZEFHERER IR 2017TF 2 FE
ERFEERXZ S

No. Connected Transaction Connected Person Annual Cap Actual Transaction Amount
GY HEXS BEAL FELR BRRS2%
RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000
ARBTT THEL AREFT THER
1 Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement TK Technology Holdings Limited 120 144 120 144
("TK Technology Holdings”)
ERME RS RINBEERRAT
((RIMRER])
2 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop A TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,396 2,887 2,282 2,619
Lease Agreement
RERBEAREE s ROTRH (R
3 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop B TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,326 2,802 2,216 2,543
Lease Agreement
AEFBEBRAE RIRHE (R
4 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop C  TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,386 2,875 2,272 2,608
Lease Agreement
RYERBECREE ik LR (R
5 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop D TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,254 2,716 1,053 1,209
Lease Agreement
REZBEDREE i LR (R
6 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop E - TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,775 2,139 1,497 1,719
Lease Agreement
AEFBEERAEE B LR (RN
7 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop F TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,987 2,394 1,892 2,172
Lease Agreement
REREEFRESHE TR (R
8  Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop G~ TK Technology (Shenzhen) 4,005 4,825 3,815 4,379
Lease Agreement
REREECREERE LR (R
9 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Workshop H -~ TK Technology (Shenzhen) 3,791 4,567 2,270 2,605
Lease Agreement
RYEREEHREE 3 RIR ORI
10 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Zone A TK Technology (Shenzhen) 7,591 9,145 7,113 8,165
Workshop J Lease Agreement
RERBEIFARRERZ RIRHEORYND
11 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Zone B TK Technology (Shenzhen) 10,520 12,675 7,021 8,055
Workshop J Lease Agreement
AIEZBRIHEBRES TR (RYI)
12 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory ~ TK Technology (Shenzhen) 543 654 441 506

Block A Lease Agreement

MIEZBEAREEEE RS

BTRR ORI

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR
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No. Connected Transaction Connected Person Annual Cap Actual Transaction Amount
GY BEXZ BEAL FELR BERRS8
RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000
ARETTT TEL ARETT FHET
13 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Parking Space  TK Technology (Shenzhen) 531 640 421 483
Lease Agreement
MIERBEENRERE ROTRHB (R
14 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Farm Land ~ TK Technology (Shenzhen) 504 398 457
Lease Agreement
MEFBEELRERE RIRHE (R
15 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Football Field TK Technology (Shenzhen) 239 189 216
Lease Agreement
MERBE R E R RIRR (RN
Subtotal of lease agreements
BEBR G 49,206 33,000 37,880

(1)

Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement dated 22 December 2015 (the “Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and the Company as tenant
in respect of the premises located at Workshop No. 19 on
9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
(the “Hong Kong Premises”) with an area of approximately
77.67 square metres for a term of two years commencing on 1
January 2016 and expiring on 31 December 2017 at a monthly
rent of HK$12,000. The property is used as the principal place
of business for the Group in Hong Kong. At any time during the
term of the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the Company may
terminate the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by giving not
less than one month’s prior written notice to the landlord or by
paying one month's rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung
and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK
Technology Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the Company.
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Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual
rent of the Hong Kong Premises in 2017 amounted to
HK$144,000, payable by the Company in advance on the first
day of each calendar month. The annual rent payable to TK
Technology Holdings was determined at after arm’s length
negotiation between the parties to the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement. The independent property valuer of the Company
has also confirmed that the terms of the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement are fair and reasonable and the rental payment
under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement reflects the
prevailing market rate.

Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements

The following lease agreements were entered into between
TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen)
Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)"”), TK Precision Plastics
(Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Precision Plastics”) and YD Mold
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RIMB ORI (FEREE) BRITIRA
CRINDBR AR (TRIEACRID L)

RTRBEPEZ CRYD AR B (TRITHE
BE2 ) REREBEACRID BR AT

(Shenzhen) Limited (“YD Mold") as tenants respectively: (MEEER]) (EAEAFRAN) D RIFISL ™
FIEE W ¢
Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
i ] EEHE] E:E BENZ 3 ikl
(RMB)
(AE®)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2016 Workshop A, Phase 1 of TK 1 January 2016 to 199,639
Workshop and TK Mold (Shenzhen| and Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017
A Lease Agreement YD Mold as tenants Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEFEEAREE R FIMROR) (ERZT)EFIRE  20165181R RE R TR AP ER R 01681810%
(RN RFFEA(ERERAA) BRMBRIHRIEE(-H) 0175128318
FREAR
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as 1 January 2016 Workshop B, Phase 1 of TK 1 January 2016 to 193,872
Workshop landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen) Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017
B Lease Agreement as tenant Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEFHEBREE h RIMG(RY) (eR%T)EFIRE 201651718 RN TR AP ERER N1651810%
(R (R A) BRUBRINRIZE(-H) 017E12831 B
FzBR
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2016 Workshop C, Phase 1 of TK 1 January 2016 to 198,816
Workshop and TK Mold {Shenzhen) as tenant Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017
C Lease Agreement Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEFRRECREERZ RIMRORY) (ER%T)EFIRE 201651718 BRI AR ‘Hﬁﬁuﬂ#?ﬁ N16¥1A10%
(R (e R A) BRHBRINRIZE(-H 0175128318
FRCR
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EFEHREE(E)
Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
i EEHE] FE:E EENE 3 A&
(RMB)
(AE®)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2016 Area No.2, Workshop D, Phase 1 1 January 2016 to 9,147
Workshop and TK Mold {Shenzhen) as tenant of TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017
D Lease Agreement Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIBFEREDREEHE  RIBR(MINERZHERIER 201651718 RER TR ARG ER SR 016817102
(R (tERAEA) BRHERTHRIZE(-H) 0175128318
FRDR2E
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2016 and Area Nos.1 and 2, Workshop E, 1 January 2016 to 128,204
Workshop and TK Mold [Shenzhen) as tenant 15 March 2017 Phase 1 of TK Technology Park, 31 December 2017
E Lease Agreement Tangjia Community, Gongming
Sub- District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
MIEFHREREERS RIMG(RI) (A% T)ERIRE 201651818 R R TR PGB R N1651810%
(R (fERAEA) 2017%3A158 BRHERIMRIZE(-H) 0175128318
FRERIS - 05
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2016 Workshop F, Phase 1 of TK 1 January 2016 to 165,547
Workshop and TK Mold {Shenzhen) as tenant Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017
F Lease Agreement Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEFREFREE RS RIMREOR) (fERZT)EFIRE 201651718 RE R AR ‘Eﬁ%mﬂ%ﬁz N16F1A10%
(R (e R A) BRHBRINRIZE(-H 0175128318
FRFR
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as 1 January 2016 Workshop G and Mezzanine Level 1 January 2016 to 33N
Workshop landlord and TK Precision Plastics of Workshop G, Phase 2 of 31 December 2017
G Lease Agresment (Shenzhen) as tenant TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEFERCRAERE  HIRR(MI(EAZT)ERIRE 201651718 PR TR AP ER SR 016%1810%
TR(RY) (%A BRHERIHRIZE(ZH) 0175128318
HiRGH - GRRAE
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2016 and Area Nos. 5, 8 and 9, Workshop 1 January 2016 to 207,845
Workshop and TK Precision Plastics and TK 1 August 2017 H and Mezzanine Level of 31 December 2017
H Lease Agresment Mold (Shenzhen) as tenants Workshop H, Phase 2 of TK
Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIBFREHREEHE  RIBR(MID(ERZTERIRE  201651A18R RER TR AR ER SR 016817102
TERRIRECR) (EREBA)  2017%8A1R BRIBRIHRIEE(ZH) 0175128318
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Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
i EEHE] FE:E EENE 3 A&
(RMB)
(AE®)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Zone A TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2016 and Zong Aon Level 3,4, 5.and 6, 1 January 2016 to 622,372
Workshop J Lease and TK Precision Plastics as tenant 1 June 2017 Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK 31 December 2017
Agreement Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIBFHRRAENERE  RINROMI)(EAXT)ERIRE  0651A18R R TR AP ERER 01681810%
AR (fERAEA) 201756818 BAMERIHRIZE(=H) 017£12A318
FRJRE 45 6EAR
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Zone B~ TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2016 and Zone Bon Level 1,2,34,5,6,89 1 January 2016 to 726,080
Workshop J Lease and TK Precision Plastics as tenant 15 September 2017 and 10, Workshop J, Phase 3 31 December 2017
Agreement of TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIBFRE/RBERERE  RINR(MI(ERZHERTRE 201651818 R PRI BB ARG EN SR N16¥1A10%
HR(fERREA) 201759A158 BXHERTHRIZE(=H) W17512A31R
BRJE1-2:3:4:5:6°
89 10EBE
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen| as landlord 1 January 2017 Dormitory Block A of TK 1 January 2017 to 36,740
Dormitory Block A Lease and TK Precision Plastics and TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2017
Agreement Mold (Shenzhen) as tenants Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIBFERARESTENE  HIRR(M)(EAXT)ERIRE 01751718 RER TR ARG ER R N17%1818%
TERRIBR(RY) (feBREA) BRHERIMRIXEARES 0175128318
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Parking  TK Technology (Shenzhen| as landlord 1 January 2017 Parking Space of TK Technology 1 January 2017 to 36,800
Space Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics and TK Park, Tangjia Community, 31 December 2017
Mold (Shenzhen) as tenants Gongming Sub-District Office,
Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIBFEREUEERE  RIRR(M)(EAZT)ERIRE 201751418 RE R TR RRR AP ERER N17%1810%
FERFIRECR) (fERREA) BRUBRINHIEESN 0175128318
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Farm - TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2016 Farm Land of TK Technology Park, 1 January 2016 to 34,800
Land Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenant Tangjia Community, Gongming 31 December 2017
Sub-District Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
MIEFRERAEERE  RINR(AIERRT)ERIRE 201651A18 R TR AP ERER 01681810%
AR ({ERAEA) BRHERINRIRERM 017£12A318
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Football - TK Technology (Shenzhen| as landlord 1 January 2016 Foothall Field of TK Technology 1 January 2016 to 16,500
Field Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenant Park, Tangjia Community, 31 December 2017
Gongming Sub-District Office,
Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIBFERUIEERE  EIRR(M)(EAZT)ERIRE 201651718 R TR AP ERER 01681810%
AR ({ERAEA) BRHBRINRIZERNS 0175128318
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Directors’ report (continued)
EEeWREEE)

TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold
are entitled to renew the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements by notifying the landlord one month before the
expiration of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements,
and TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold
are entitled to a right of first refusal in the renewal. Moreover,
in the event that the landlord intends to sell the subject
properties during the term of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements, including any renewal thereof, the landlord
shall inform TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD
Mold of the intended sale in writing and TK Mold (Shenzhen),
TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are entitled to a right of
first refusal to purchase, which is deemed to be waived if TK
Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold do not
accept the offer within 30 days after receiving such notice.
TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are
further entitled to terminate the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements by giving one month’s notice to the landlord
without cause. Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, being the
ultimate shareholders of TK Technology (Shenzhen), undertake
to use their best endeavour to procure TK Technology
(Shenzhen) to fulfil its obligations under the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to
45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee.
According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is
an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a
connected person of the Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties to the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.
The independent property valuer of the Company has also
confirmed that, having taken into account of, among other
things, the title defects of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants, the
terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
(including the rental payable thereunder) are fair and
reasonable and the rental payable under the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements reflects the prevailing market rate.
Our directors consider that the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements have been entered into on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement and Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
(collectively the “Connected Lease Agreements”) have been
aggregated for the purposes of determining the category of
continuing connected transaction that the Connected Lease
Agreements shall fall into under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have, for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the
agreements governing such transactions on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company's
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 32
to the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2017, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ report (continued)
sEgREE(E)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 39.4% of the Group's total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
was approximately 11.5% of the Group's total sales. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were approximately 14.8% of the Group's total purchases and
the purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 4.9% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had beneficial interests in the Group's top five suppliers or
customers referred to above.

RECTIFICATION OF NON-COMPLIANCE
ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROCEDURES FOR THE
PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF OCCUPATIONAL
DISEASES AND HAZARDS

At the time of listing, the Company had non-compliance in relation
to procedures for the prevention and control of occupational
diseases and hazards. Up to the date of this annual report, the
Company had rectified the non-compliance in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares entered into by the Company during the Year under
Review or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No contracts of significance were entered into between the

Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHEHRE

i
pwec

To the shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of TK Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 125 to 207, which comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“"HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to Impairment of
trade receivables.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

By e RS (8)

Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AN ETNNEEEREENEE

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to Note 4.1(b) — Critical accounting estimates
and assumptions and Note 17(b) — Trade and other
receivables to the consolidated financial statements.

We focused on this area because the allowance
for impairment of trade receivables is mainly
related to specific customers (HK$5.9 million
as at 31 December 2017) and has decreased by
approximately HK$0.9 million or 13% comparing
with that of last year.

In addition, the assessment for impairment of trade
receivables involves critical accounting estimates
and judgments relating to the extent and duration
that amount will be recovered.
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In responding to this key audit matter, we performed
the following procedures:

(i)  We understood, evaluated and tested credit control
procedures of the trade receivables including the
monthly management review of ageing, repayment
and impairment assessment of trade receivables;

(i) For those items with impairment provision being
made, we reviewed the impairment calculations,
focusing on the estimated amount to be recovered
and timing of the recovery with reference to the
supporting documents, e.g. repayment schedules of
trade receivables;

(iii) We requested confirmations for major year end
balances. Where confirmations had not been
received or received with difference, we sought
explanation from management and checked to their
original sales contracts, delivery documents and
their subsequent settlement after year end date.

Based on the procedures performed and evidence
obtained, we found accounting estimates and
judgments in relation to the provision for impairment
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 was
supported by the evidence we obtained.
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

B ZH A RS (48)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

BRBMRES S BRRAENE
£

AR BEBENHEREHYBRERES T
T B P BREF Sk 25 5R 1T & By (4] B K B8 AR R
MMEEERE  WHABREAMERNZ
HEHRE o AT mESER BET(EAE
B WAEEMBR « NI TEHA
WMEMADRAMEAMA LB SR EM
BEf - A BRFASKENRE - TR
BIRBEBRTENETHELEERA]
BETF LMY EE KSR AR R i o $8 FR R il 7] BRF
NFEFR S| - WA IETAHIH Bk [E AN 6
HEBIREVBMRGAE KBRS M HEHE
FYE I RO 48 R E - B BE SR AR BN 4R /E
EARBERBR o

ERBEASBNEAETRTNBIET - K

PrERBEHE  RIEBMXEREE - A
DI
o AR EHERKFRERMERS H

MHBEREFEERERRAVAR - R
ARBITRAEFABHZFRR - X
KBS ﬁi&mamgﬁ_m tERA
PrEREER - ARNKEFAI Y k&
ﬁ mE - BERER ?%ﬁL’ﬁ&

MBEDIES 2 £ - FI R E R
%ﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁLmﬂ&%Fl

e M G EAERRANRER B -
o THRERITAMAANIES - URFHE

EMEFEF - ER E’\NU»E;T E5H

NEBZEFIN BRI ERER

o FHEEEMEMETERRNBEMLERIE
ﬁ AR AR EEMNA R



Independent auditor’s report (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

By e RS (8)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Chin Hoo, Albert.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
afftEERER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A3MALEE
2017 2016
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
HtaE FHExT FHET
Revenue WA 5 1,860,900 1,626,611
Cost of sales BHE KA 7 (1,233,897) (1,170,133)
Gross profit EF 627,003 456,478
Other income H A 6 28,743 22,734
Other (losses)/gains — net Hih (B518), M — 35 6 (11,118) 15,372
Selling expenses HERE 7 (84,602) (86,626)
Administrative expenses TTHER S 7 (215,153) (181,244)
Operating profit T 344,873 226,714
Interest income F B A 9 6,615 5,533
Interest expenses B R 9 (1,981) (3,230)
Finance income — net BB A — F5E 2,303
Profit before income tax BR P 18 B¢ AaR Al 349,507 229,017
Income tax expense Fri8fif 10 (47,674) (23,319)
Profit for the year attributable to RNTEE AEN
owners of the Company FRRF 205,698
Other comprehensive income Hittama s
Item that may be reclassified to BLA[REE T TR
profit and loss: Bz sIHE -
Currency translation differences E N Z%H 38,275 (35,263)
Total comprehensive income for FRGEENZEE
the year 340,108 170,435
Earnings per share for the year ERERER
— basic and diluted (HK$ per share) — ERREE(FRETT) 11 0.25

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The notes on pages 131 to 207 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EHEEEER
Note
it
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B REE 13
Intangible assets mpEE 14
Prepayments for property, plant and ME - BE MREHTEMR
equipment
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16
Trade and other receivables B 5N EMERGRTE 17
Deposits for bank borrowings RITEENES 24
Restricted cash ZPRHIER & 19
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFEY 19
Total assets HEE
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of ARATEE AELER
the Company
Share capital A& X 20
Share premium & 15 (8 20
Other reserves E A 23
Retained earnings IREB 22
Total equity RS

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2017
HK$'000
FHET

415,697
12,124

7,793

305,468
347,298

9,412
540,815

1,202,993

1,638,607

83,326
251,293
38,466
538,433

2016
HK$'000
TAET

362,400
11,035

12,154

385,589

264,388
253,564
90,766
26,476
381,310

1,016,504

1,402,093

82,660
237,902
(5,767)
370,215

685,010



Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

aHEERER(E)

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2017 2016
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B aE FEx FET
LIABILITIES 8&
Non-current liabilities IRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 65,210 34,310
Deferred income on government grants B 4 Bh iR ZE WA 25 11,443 7,516
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEAEHAaRE 27 7,694 7,184
49,010
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A FERFIR 26 582,589 494,021
Income tax liabilities FristiasE 27,448 9,068
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 32,705 164,984
642,742 668,073
Total liabilities HWEE 727,089 717,083
Total equity and liabilities ERRBEEAE 1,638,607 1,402,093

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The notes on pages 131 to 207 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial

The financial statements on pages 125 to 207 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 12 March 2018 and were signed on its

behalf.

statements.

Li Pui Leung
MR
Director

EF

A& OB E B B R EE R BE M MY 5 — 6160

s,
G}

F13NE207EHMERZE A M B MERN
B ©

F125F 207 B R EKN2018F3 A 12H
REZSH A THAERKREE -

Yung Kin Cheung Michael
HEM

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EOHERESER

Other reserves
Hitfd e
Share  Currency
Share Share  Statutory option translation  Retained
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve  earnings Total
RE  ROHRE ATRE BRERE EIRE RERERN Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAR FAT AT TAR TAT
Balance at 1 January 2016 201651 A1 A M4 82,660 237,902 33,751 3,334 (21,195) 269,049 605,501
Comprehensive income HREhE
Profit for the year FRRH — — — — — 205,698 205,698
Currency translation EXER
differences — — — — (35,263) = (35,263)
Total comprehensive income & KHA%E = — — — (35,263) 205,698 170,435
Contributions by and ARREEALER
distributions to owners of  E{5 2K
the Company
Dividends Mt & — — — — — (90,926) (90,926)
Total contributions by and ~ FRAAFEE A
distributions to owners of ~ HERELLSE
the Company for the year kel — — — — (35,263) 114,772 79,509
Transfer to statutory reserves  BEEETHME — — 13,606 — — (13,606) —
Total transactions with BADNAREAN
owners of the Company REBHE = = 13,606 — (35,263) 101,166 79,509
Balance at 31 December 2016 201612310 & 82,660 237,902 47,357 3,334 (56,458) 370,215 685,010
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

A M T—ﬂu—lﬁé—é
o e m

Other reserves

g (E)

Hitfdfe
Share  Currency
Share Share  Statutory option translation  Retained
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve  earnings Total
BAE  ROEE EERE BRERE EXRE  REER @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FAT TAT TAR FAT TAT TAR TAT
Balance at 1 January 2017 201781 A1 AMEeR 82,660 237,902 47,357 3,334 (56,458 370,215 685,010
Comprehensive income ek
Profit for the year FRRH — — — — — 301,833 301,833
Currency translation EHER
differences 23 — — — — 38,275 — 38,275
Total comprehensive income %4 Wi A% = — — — 38275 301,833 340,108
Contributions by and ARREEALER
distributions to owners of  E{E 2K
the Company
Proceed from shares issued  R{T{ERERRIEX
upon exercise of share ke
options PS8 20 666 10,057 = — = — 10,723
Transfer to share premium TR
upon exercise of share BREZRN
options HmE 20 — 3,334 — (3,334) = = =
Dividends & 28 — — — — —  (124323) (124,323
Total contributions by and ~ FRXAFHEEA
distributions to owners of ~ HERELLSE
the Company for the year it 666 13,391 — (3,334) 38,275 177,510 226,508
Transfer to statutory reserves  BEEATHE 2 — — 9,292 — — (9,292) —
Total transactions with BEAFEEAN
owners of the Company RABE 666 13,391 9,292 (3,334) 38,275 168,218 226,508
Balance at 31 December 2017 201712831 B & 83,326 251,293 56,649 — (18,183) 538,433 911,518

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The notes on pages 131 to 207 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRERER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Jira TERT FAL
Cash flows from operating activities REKSEZHNRERE
Cash generated from operations MEELNERS 29(a) 425,483 266,356
Interest received BUFIE 3,210 3,242
Income tax paid BTFEH (28,636) (24,638)
Net cash generated from operating activities &2 EEEASNE L FH 400,057 244,960
Cash flows from investing activities REREFHNREERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BMERREUAR
and construction in progress IR (119,979) (98,875)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (4,465) (4,020)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERZEN
plant and equipment FriS s E 29(b) 5,820 4,670
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BB At ENSREE (333,706) (221,318)
Proceeds from available-for-sale financial AL ENSREEMGHRE
assets 337,296 223,792
Net cash used in investing activities REEBHMARSFE (115,034) (95,751)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNRERE
Proceeds from employee share option 17 (R B BRI 2 FT{S 3R 0R
exercised 20(a) 10,723 —
Proceeds from bank borrowings BITEEMERE 100,000 326,790
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITEE (201,379) (332,835)
Decrease in deposits for bank borrowings RITEERE R 90,766 13,472
Interest paid BHE (2,086) (3,221)
Dividends paid BRE 28 (124,323) (90,926)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEHTRE L FH (126,299) (86,720)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B4 RREZEYE T 158,724 62,489
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FONRERBESERBY
of the year 381,310 319,951
Currency translation gains/(losses) on cash and & KEEEEWER
cash equivalents Wi/ (EE) 781 (1,130)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRIBE NIELEEY 540,815 381,310
Analysis of balances of cash and cash ReRBReSEMEHRANT
equivalents:
Cash and cash on hand BekFEEE 550,227 407,786
Restricted cash XRHHE (9,412) (26,476)
540,815 381,310

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The notes on pages 131 to 207 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The address of the Company's registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company, an investment
holding company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales,
subcontracting, fabrication and modification of molds and
plastic components in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC"). As at 31 December 2017, the ultimate shareholders
of the Group are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate
Shareholders”), each holding an effective equity interest of
30.79%, 19.16% and 18.48% in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 12 March
2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets
which are carried at fair value.

PR AR BT RE

— R

KARR2013F3A 2B RNHAEHS
MK AERREBR AR o AQF
=T i 3% =5 5E /Y b 4E & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgments in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgments or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group
The following standards have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2017:

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealized losses

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure for changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities

Annual improvements project ~ Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle

The adoption of these amendments did not have
any impact on the current period or any prior
period and is not likely to affect future periods.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2017 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group's assessment of the impact of
these new standards and interpretations is set out
below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 BB (E)

21.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 1N S BERRIRES S (H)
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(b) HARIRANEIFTETER R o2 FE

(Continued) (%)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BERBUBHREERAFZIN 2
BT A

Nature of change ZE)tE

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting
and a new impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets
and liabilities and is expecting the following
impact from the adoption of the new standards
on 1 January 2018. The majority of the Group's
debt instruments that are currently classified
as available-for-sale will satisfy the conditions
for classification as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") and hence
there will be no change to the accounting for these
assets.

There will be no impact on the Group's accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for financial liabilities
that are designed at fair value through profits
or loss and the Group does not have any such
liabilities. The derecognition rules have been
transferred form HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and have not been
changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
211 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based on
expected credit losses (“ECL") rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS
39. It applies to financial assets classified at
amortised cost, debt instruments measured at
FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. Based on the
assessments undertaken to date, the Group
expects no increase in loss allowance for trade
debtors.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosure about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of
the adoption of the new standards.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 BB (E)

21.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 1N S BERRIRES S (H)
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(b) HARIRANEIFTETER R o2 FE

(Continued) (%)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB EERFISHER
Customers BEF S K

Nature of change #E)ME

The Hong Kong Institute Of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts and
related literature.

The new standards is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective
or a modified restrospective approach for the
adoption.

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying
the new standards on the Group's financial
statements and has identified the following area
that will be affected:

The application of HKRS 15 may result in the
identification of separate performance obligations
when it is determined that the transfer of control
happens at an earlier date according to the trade
terms used in the contracts, then the shipping
and insurance arrangements will be considered
as separate performance obligations if it is agreed
with customer that the Group will be responsible
for such arrangements. The identification of
separate performance could affect the timing of
revenue going forward.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
211 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. The Group intends to adopt
the standard using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative
impact of the the adoption will be recognised in
retained earnings as of 1 Jaunary 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and financing leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financing liablity to pay rentals
are recognided. The only exceptions are short-
term and low value leases.

Impacts

The standards will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’'s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$57,858,000.
The Group estimates that majority of these relate
to payments for short-term leases which will be
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

211 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group
does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’'s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (Note 2.6(c)).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group's accounting policies.

Merger accounting

In preparing for the Company'’s listing on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in December 2013,
the Group underwent a reorganisation involving
entities under the same ownership of the ultimate
shareholders.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities
or businesses as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control
of the controlling party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Merger accounting (Continued)

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are combined using the existing
carrying amounts from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is recognised for goodwill
or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net fair
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, whichever is shorter,
regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at
the previous balance sheet date or when they
first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted
by those entities. All intra-group transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between combining entities or businesses are
eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2.3 Segment reporting 2.3 DEHME
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Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been Rk EiRIR o
identified as the executive directors who makes strategic
decisions.
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(a) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in

which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
Renminbi (“RMB") is the functional currency of
principal operating subsidiaries of the Group. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar, which is the presentation and
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within “Other (losses)/gains — net”.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income
within “finance income — net”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in statement
of comprehensive income within “other (losses)/gains
— net”.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transaction); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.4 INEEITE (&)

(c) Group companies (Continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised as a separate component of equity in
other comprehensive income.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment
on which construction work has not been completed and
stated at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction
expenditure incurred, interest and other direct costs
attributable to the development. Depreciation is not
provided on construction in progress until the related asset
is completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHEHME@E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.5 9% - BRERZMEE)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 20 years
s 20%F

Leasehold improvements

W% - BERRBITEREMAH
ERFHANERERERADEE
HEEFEDT

Over 5 years or the remaining term of the relevant lease,

whichever is shorter

HEMEERE

Plant and machinery 5-10 years
55 B 28 5E10%F
Furniture, fixtures and computer equipment 3 years
HR  RERBHRE 3%

Motor vehicles 5 years
E 54

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other (losses)/gains — net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Computer software

Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 10 years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The contractual customer
relations have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method at 3 years
over the expected life of the customer relationship.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“"CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Research and development expenditure

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.7 HEERE

Research expenditures is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new and improved products)
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use;

e management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

e there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

e adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

e the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development cost previously recognised as an expense
is not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.8 FERMEERE

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, these are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables comprise
deposits for bank borrowings, trade and other
receivables, restricted cash and cash and bank
balances in the balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

29.1 Classification (Continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

292 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest income on available-for-sale financial
assets is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of interest income.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2N EMEERE

2.11lmpairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or Group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads based on
normal operating capacity. It excluded borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.13Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold and service provided in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. See Note 2.9.2 for further information about
the Group's accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.11
for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.14Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investment
with original maturities of three months or less and
bank overdrafts. In the consolidated balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.15Share capital 2.15 BR 7R

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.17Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.19Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.19Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 219BENHA R IERE RS %t (48)

(b) Deferred income tax

(b) EFEFTISH

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to
control the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement in place
that gives the group the ability to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.20Employee benefits

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.21Share-based payments 2N URHDBEE 2R

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(and share premium).

2.22Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities as described below. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Modification services income
Revenue from mold modification services is
recognised in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

2.23Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.24Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

2.25Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management
is carried out by the senior management of the Group and
approved by the Board of Directors.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, and is exposed
to foreign currency risks, mainly with respect to HK
dollar (“HK$"), US dollar (“USD") and Euro dollar
("EUR"). Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends
have always been the concern of the Group. Foreign
currency hedging of the Group has been managed by
our chief financial officer, and overseen by the Group's
chief executive officer. In accordance with our hedging
needs and the then foreign exchange situation,
the Group’s chief financial officer would gather
and analyse information regarding various hedging
instruments and determine stop-loss thresholds.
The Group’'s chief financial officer would then obtain
quotations from various banks as to the financial
instrument and present such quotations to the Group's
chief executive officer, who would then evaluate
and make a decision as to whether to enter into the
relevant hedging agreement. No hedging contract has
been entered into during the year. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R o ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEREE@m
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 iRk EE (#)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a) HMEE R B (48)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REBLEBERBAH  KRXEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities INESTHERMEBEENEEARG
at the respective balance sheet dates are as follows: ZEEEESEYNT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx T
Assets EE
HK$ BIT 15,570
ush ETT 489,853
EUR BT 41,338
Total @t 607,459 546,761
Liabilities afE
HK$ AT 105,305 129,357
Usb xE7T 36,703 38,321
EUR BT 1,560 80,643
Total Bs 143,568 248,321
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
the relevant foreign currencies, with all other variable
held constant, the profit before income tax would have
been higher/(lower) as follows:

B R Mo ()

3 M¥KEKRERE@m)

3.1 iRk R =& (@)

(a) FMEE B2 ()

2017
higher/(lower) on profit

before income tax if
exchanges rates change by exchanges rates change by

HERSEBUT - BRAASHAT HMEXRBBMNT - BRATFHA

MARMAEEBIINEAE R
B5%  MABERMEERS
N8 RIBR PR S TR OBT A B OB
m/CRAERIT

2016
higher/(lower) on profit
before income tax if

EA I, GRD) sm A, CRid)
+5% -5% +5% -5%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T T
HK$ BT 4,381 (4,381) 5,689 (5,689)
uUsD E7T (25,665) 25,665 (22,577) 22,577
EUR BT (1,910) 1,910 1,965 (1,965)

(b) Price risk (b) EFEE

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
or commodity price risk and the Group has not entered
into any long term contracts with the suppliers.
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials are usually
passed on to customers.

(c) Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents and deposits for bank
borrowings, the Group manages the credit risk by
placing all the bank deposits in state-owned financial
institutions or reputable banks which are all high-
credit-quality financial institutions.

(c)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

To manage the credit risk in respect of trade and
other receivables, the Group performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition
and does not require collateral from the debtors
on the outstanding balances. Based on the
expected recoverability and timing for collection
of the outstanding balances, the Group maintains
an allowance for doubtful accounts and actual
losses incurred have been within management'’s
expectations.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group faced some
concentration of credit risk as the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 53% (2016:
59%) of the total trade receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management
by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances. The
Group’s liquidity risk is further mitigated through the
availability of financing through its own cash resources
and the availability of banking facilities to meet its
financial commitments. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows including interest elements computed using
contractual rates, or if floating based on rates at the
year-end date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKEEREE@m
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 PRk E = (#)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) REVES R (E)
On 3 months 3 months Over
demand orless to1year 1 year Total
=f@A =@A
BRER ET7WN E—F —FHE #at

HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TERT

At 31 December 2017 20179128318
Bank borrowings RITEE 12,268 101,442
Trade and other payables &5 & H i fE {708
(excluding non-financial ~ (3E£EIBERI)
liabilities) 281,505 292,060

Total

e
ot
=k

10,555 293,773 22,307 66,867 393,502

On 3 months 3 months Over
demand orless  to1year 1 year Total
=faA =f@A
BREX AT E—F —FNE st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TET TET TAET TR

At 31 December 2016  #2016%F12H31H
Bank borrowings RITEE — 149,436 17,316 37,101 203,853
Trade and other payables & 5 & H e 5018

(excluding non-financial  (FE& LB BEKRIN)

liabilities) 15,613 226,639 — — 242,252

Total 4Bt 15,613 376,075 17,316 37,101 446,105
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swap arrangements
but will consider hedging interest rate risk should
the needs arise. If interest rate for variable rate
borrowings had been 1% higher/lower for the year
ended 31 December 2017 with all other variables
held at constant, the Group’'s profit before tax would
have been lower/higher by HK$979,000 (2016:
HK$1,993,000).

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, changes in interest
rates within an expected range had no material impact
on the interest income of cash and cash equivalents.

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may vary the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
total equity.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BXKERERE@m)
3.2 Capital management (Continued) 3.2 EREE ()
The gearing ratio is as follows: BEABBRENOT :
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FAT

Total borrowings BEEHBzE 199,294

Gearing ratio (%) BEBEBLE(%) m—m%

Gearing ratio has decreased to 11% as at 31 December M2017F12A831H  BEAELX
2017, which is due to increase in equity and decrease in ERE11% @ WIRRERIE IR
total borrowings. BEEBETR AT °

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 A AfEMLE
The fair values of current financial assets, including cash ANE AR - R2017F12A31
and cash equivalents, restricted cash, deposits for bank H nocpEE(BERERRE
borrowings and trade and other receivables, as well ZEY - XBRHRE |RITEED
as current financial liabilities including trade and other BeURE S REMBEWTKIE) K
payables and current bank borrowings approximate their NBTREBE(RREEZIREMEN
carrying amounts due to their short maturities as at 31 HIEUAKATHRITER) WA R EY
December 2017. BEEEEES -
There were no financial assets or liabilities measured 7M2017F12A318 - BiEEREH
at fair value by the use of valuation techniques at 31 HERNEARBEHECCREE
December 2017 (2016: nil). S EE(20164F : &) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’'s management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and
consequently the related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of receivables
The Group makes allowance for impairment
of receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables with
reference to the extent and duration that the amount
will be recovered. Allowance is applied where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgments and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
the impairment charge in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

4

B S e at (i wt & I

AREEBEERR LR FRERE
RN - BERNEBERTY AR
FIEL AT -

4.1 BERETHEE RRR

SR 1R R A A 2T R R - R
£BE - B EIHERR O SR
MEBRER - TR e 2B
RTEYM BT ENYEER A S
EEFREARENEARRZ
SHRER -

(a) % - BERRBOAERFH
FEEEREEEEME  BER
R EFT R E A A R BETR
MMERRITERX - &bt HiIRE
BUEEMDENTE - BER
RENERERFHNELER
MYEH o R 88 A Rl 5 37 S 4
BREMTEBRSEFTAMESL
BEEL - WERFHINAE
fRET R - SR SR
iy LB sk B A sk EHIFEEK
BEMEE  EEEREMTER
=+ o

(b) FEWGRIRRIE
AEBREBEHE S M HE Mt REYK
AR RO EETE - 2F
7 T U @ ) & BE K s ) T A B R
WORIER (B B - HB S EER
SECRNEHREZRKDE - Ble
ELBE - BAIREAER—T
B H B R fh At o fHTRERER R ST fh
AHERBA  ZEERRTER
2 B B A FE MR IR RO BR (B K 28
NGt A ZEMREERX -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
would evaluate customers’ orders, ageing analysis
of inventories and compare the carrying amount of
inventories to their respective net realisable value.
A considerable amount of judgments is required in
determining such allowances. If conditions which
have impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgments is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be recognised.
The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.

4 BEEE

B R Mo ()

aTd 5T 52 3 i ()

4.1 BERETHEE RRR (3

(c)

(d)

FERE

REE B KT HFEPH e #
BEER - AEEEFEEPA]
B -FENRESMLHE
ERREERLR MR BB F
B BEZBEBRTEETAEH
i o iR EFE R 2IRFEMNR
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PGB RIEER R
HEEBEMSHNERRAFLE
RHE - EFREXRHBIET - &
AR5 Rt BT A ETREE
BERKPIENER - HELEE
R PS5 B R V)8R 1S MY SRR
BFZE  EHEZRREXERE
JE 150 TR IR 1) BN R S R FE AT 1S 35
BENAE -

HERERRBAEBAREKE
AR A DA 8 B R B S IR
BiE - ARRERETEREHE
EREBBRNEENIREE - B
RERERAEEMTM -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

With effect from 1 January 2008, companies within the
PRC are required to withhold income tax at 10% of the
amount of dividend declared to their immediate holding
companies outside the PRC when their PRC subsidiaries
declare dividend out of profits earned after 1 January
2008. A lower 5% withholding income tax rate is applied
when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are established in Hong Kong and fulfil certain
requirements under the tax treaty arrangements between
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year, the directors
reassessed the cash requirement of the Group and the
dividend policy of its major subsidiaries established in
the PRC, namely TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited, YD Mold
(Shenzhen) limited, TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
Limited and TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) Limited, based
on the Group's current business plan and financial position.
The profit generated by these subsidiaries for the period
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 amounting to
HK$167,343,000 would not be distributed and no deferred
tax liability was accrued accordingly. The Group plans
to reinvest these profits in the business operation. This
involves critical judgments by the directors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors of the Group. The executive directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources and have determined
the operating segments based on the internal reports that
are used to make strategic decisions. During the year, the
Group has 17 operating segments, out of which 9 operating
segments relating to the mold business are aggregated into
‘mold fabrication’ operating segment as they have similar
economic characteristics and satisfy all conditions and meet all
the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8; the remaining 8 operating
segments relating to the plastic business are aggregated
into ‘plastic components manufacturing’ operating segment
as they have similar economic characteristics and satisfy all
conditions and meet all the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8.
Accordingly, the executive directors considered the nature of
the Group's business and determined that the Group has two
reportable segments as follows: (i) mold fabrication and (ii)
plastic components manufacturing.

The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on their revenue and gross profit
and do not assess the assets and liabilities of the operating
segments.

Segment information for consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

(a) The following table presents information on revenue of the
Group by geographical segments for the year.

Revenue from external customers

5

B R Mo ()

7 ERE R

TERERRECHAERAEEHIT
B - HTESEHNAKENANI RS
AHERBRDEER - WREANE
HEBRAROABBREEELL D -
REERN  AEEHEB17TELEDE
Hep - 9fE8RAE KA BHKLEDFE
BEEEUNEERSE - mEmBEEY
B ELERIFE SR A M AR B (R 1T M
WEH R [BEABEIEEDEL : MR T
SEMTEXH A MK LD BAIEAME
BUNEERE BN BEREE
AIFESHAMERAREMK AR [T
PHEMFEEREDE - At - BITES
ERAKEXEBOMEYEEAEEM
BRI HRE D ERIAT « (VREBUER()E28
TGS -

HITEZRELE D MOBARENF
EOMRE  BUBFEHELEDHNE
ERAE-

Bt RERNDBHER

(@) TREJAEERFARMLERDH
D HRARNEE o

PRC =8

South East Asia and Hong Kong HEGBREE
Europe BOM

USA EH

Mexico =g af
Others EHh

HREFBA

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAET

770,136 605,449
433,689 391,323
378,267 373,828
243,868 191,144

4,633 27,531

30,307 37,336

1,860,900 1,626,611

The revenue information above is based on delivery
location of the customers.

ERBABERTDEREF R
b o

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEEE )

BHtFRE BRI D BER (#)

Segment information for consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Continued)

(@) (Continued) (a)

BEERE K ERBDEE(ERTA
FEEPTISHEERIN)

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets, by country:

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT FET

PRC A 425,902 378,826
Germany == 9,712 6,763
435,614 385,589

(b) The segment information for the reportable segments is
set out as below:

(b) AIFEDEHID BER BT

Plastic components

168

Mold fabrication manufacturing Total
BERE EBAGRE st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THR TAEL THT TEL THT FAT
Revenue /9N
Segment revenue SEMA 738,211 IRy 1,211,144 1,949,355 RN kY]
Inter-segment revenue elimination BRI A I 4 (88,455)" (LKL R} = EEEAR  (64,941)
Revenue from external customers ~ 9pPRERFEURA CEERE 631,396 WARBEUE 995215 EEELENNN 1,626,611
Segment results NEEE 242,978 ERVCKIVE 384,025 EYRRERN 627,003 ERELGEYLS
Other income and other gains HiA RE M
— net — 54 (v 38,106
Selling expenses HERY IVl (86,626)
Administrative expenses B PAERERIN (181,244)
Finance income — net REWA — 38 4,634 2,303
Profit before income tax RSB ADRA 349,507 [PZEKN
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2EER @)

(c) Information regarding the Group's revenue by nature: (c) BEASBERHEEE»HBRAER
2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

THxT FHET

Sales of goods HEE M 1,793,394 1,566,618
Modification service income & i BR 78 U 25 67,506 59,993

1,860,900 1,626,611

(d) Revenues of approximately HK$213,596,000 (2016: (d) #9 213,596,000 /& Jr ( 2016 F
HK$212,737,000) were derived from a single external 212,737,000/8 70) MU A Th 2k B B8
customer. These revenues are attributable to the plastic —HNARE - ZFWAREFEHA

components manufacturing segment. HEESER -

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS 6 HMWAREM(EE) WH

— NET —FE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Other income Hpug A
Sales of scrap and surplus materials THE R R FIgR MR 10,931
Government subsidies BT EL 9,436
Others HAh 2,367
22,734
Other (losses)/gains — net Hit(58) haE — F8
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain bE X (&518) a5 5 (11,908) 14,600
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWME - BEMREHUE
and equipment (Note 29(b)) (Ht5£29(b)) 790 772
(11,118) 15,372
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BRMEESINEX
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Changes in inventories of finished goods — &k ¥ K miIFEE
and work in progress (30,951) (11,546)
Raw materials and consumables used R R R FEM 641,970 573,722
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) RERBAFEZ (HEs) 492,380 452,358
Subcontracting expenses KRIEH 144,717 143,016
Depreciation and amortisation e N 5 87,565 75,395
Transportation and travelling expenses BN ERFE Y 46,838 48,043
Operating lease payments KEHER R 42,427 43,794
Water and electricity expenditures KEEBHR 35,798 35,001
Commission expenses ek === 13,076 18,347
Other taxes and levies Eii & 15,530 17,702
Allowance for receivables FEMGRIB R 1,220 3,072
Reversal of allowance for impairment of FEREEERE D
inventories (3,498) (7,192)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B 257 A
— Audit services — HER 3,980 3,787
— Non audit services — FEREARTE 553 528
Maintenance expenses wIEE R 9,897 10,683
Advisory and legal service expenses B MR RRIEE Y 6,884 9,537
Utilities and postage fees HEBLRBE 4,715 3,922
Advertising and promotion fees BEENEEER 3,616 3,302
Custom declaration charges HREEE 2,357 2,176
Security and estate management expenses REZNIEEIEE 2,084 1,518
Donations e 2,046 2,165
Recruitment expenses HEEH 1,239 2,307
Bank charges and handling fees RITRERFES 1,015 1,112

Other expenses HEmmk 8,194 5,254

Total cost of sales, selling expenses HERE HERXR
and administrative expenses TR % 1,533,652 1,438,003

170 TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 7 BEMEITHEZ @

Research and development expenses represented: s ARE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

Raw materials and consumables used R R FEM 21,287 9,993

Employee benefit expenses EERMNAX 35,339 30,253

40,246

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EEEFRX

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Wages and bonuses TERIEL 441,112 406,058
Pension costs — defined BRIRA — 8

contribution plans (a) HERETE(a) 16,644 14,250

Other social security costs E bR A 19,767 17,501

Other allowances and benefits H 2L M AT 14,857 14,549

492,380 452,358

(a) AEBFBEMBRARNEEBESL S
it TS R B E R E AR
FORARETE - AEBEMFENEA
AR A MR ENEEFAFE
HEELHI10%E20% (20164 :10%
B20% )T EMEERZT B
LAAE B EAREFIREES -

(a) Employees in the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administrated and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group's PRC subsidiaries contributes
funds which are calculated as 10%-20% (2016: 10%-20%)
of the average employee salary for the year as agreed by
local municipal government to the scheme to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees.
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
include four (2016: four) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 34. The
emoluments paid to the remaining one (2016: one)
individual during year are as follows:

8 EETFBX @)
(b) EEZEFMAL

HE2017F12A831BILFE - K&
EREmauATeENA(2016
F:OF)ES He S #EAME
SAFTTIREI DN « £ - HEp—H
(2016 : —R)BEEHFMALHE
BT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAT

Wages, salaries, allowance and ITE& & 24K
other benefits EhaF

Bonus TEAT

Contributions to pension plans RIRBET B

1,205
2,077
18

3,300

The emoluments paid to this individual fell within the
following bands:

Mz AL OBENTF o8R! -

2017 2016
Emolument bands BN <& 48 B

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T E3,500,000/8 7T 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001,8 7T 25,500,000 7T —

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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9 FINANCE INCOME — NET 9. MEWA—FHE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest income: FEWA -
— Interest income on bank deposits — RITEROFEUWA 3,059
— Interest income on available-for-sale — OftEESREERN
financial assets FBUA 2,474
6,615 5,633
Interest expense: FBEFAX :
— Bank borrowings — RITEE (1,981) (3,230)
Finance income — net BEWA — F5E 2,303
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 Fr8®iBI X
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current income tax BUEBFT1S X
— Hong Kong profits tax — BBRNER —
— PRC corporate income tax — PR EMER 23,998
— PRC corporate income tax — BAFEBEIEN
over-provided in previous years R (925)
Total current tax expense BIHABL TR B 2 4858 23,073
Deferred income tax EIEFTISR
Decrease in deferred tax assets (Note 27) EIERIBEE R (H5527) 324
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities B IBEERLD (MiE27)
(Note 27) (78)
Total deferred tax expense EAER IERA X 458 246
Income tax expense FEHiBx 23,319

RIEE (ZR) FRAF —T—tFFH 173



174

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(a) Cayman Islands income tax

—

(c)

-

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities
within the Group incorporated in the PRC, calculated in
accordance with the relevant regulations of the PRC after
considering the available tax benefits. The applicable CIT
rate is 25% (2016: 25%). TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited,
TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited and TK Plastic
Products (Suzhou) Limited, subsidiaries of the Group, were
recognised as “New and High Technology Enterprise”
and thus enjoy a preferential CIT rate of 15% from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019, 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2017 and 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018
respectively.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008,
a withholding income tax of 10% will be levied on the
immediate holding companies outside the PRC when
their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend out of profits
earned after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding
income tax rate is applied when the immediate holding
companies of the PRC subsidiaries are established in Hong
Kong and fulfil certain requirements under the tax treaty
arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.
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B M5 R Y ot (A8

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 10 Fri8®iBE X (@)
(e) The British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) income tax (e) ABERLZBE([HRBELEE ]
Frig®i
No provision for income tax in BVI has been made as the R AEERNFAERBRLHES
Group has no income assessable for income tax in BVI WRERMEHBA - WL TR
during the year (2016: nil). RBEXBESMASHEE (2016
F M)
(f) Taxation on the Group’s profit (f) REBERIF
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax N B B TS B AT R A PTA A EY B
differs from the theoretical amount that would have arisen BIERTISEmMEREB@EA A
using the main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the ERHANNETELAETRXRFEME
Group due to the following: Y ERSBEFEER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax R FT1S 5 A a7 229,017
Tax calculated at corporate income HB25% P EAMSHBRTERN
tax rate of 25% AL 87,377 57,254
Effects of: T3 BIEMNTE :
— Different tax rates applied — AT R = (33,028) (16,665)
— Income not subject to tax — HERBUA (2,338) (15,641)
— Accelerated deduction of research  — FiE BBzt NG
and development expenses (4,871) (3,261)
— Tax losses not recognised — RERIBEE 340 1,644
— Expenses not deductible for tax — FAHMBAX 310 913
— Over provision in prior years — BEFEHBEEE (116) (925)
47,674 23,319
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the year.

11 SREF
(a) &R

FREAR R F T LA F 2 A B A
AREFEHETEBRNMEFSEH

Profit attributable to owners of the

Company (HK$'000) (F#&m)

ZAYNETE? 2SN Pl

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares issued (thousands)

(F B

BT BB I8

Basic earnings per share (HK$)

BREARNCGET)

HE -
2017 2016
205,698
829,949 826,600
0.25

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share due to the absence of dilutive ordinary shares at
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: the outstanding
share options do not have any material dilutive impact,
therefore, the diluted earnings per share of the Company
approximated the basic earnings per share).
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12 SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2017, all of which are limited liability companies:

Company name

Place of

incorporation

Principal activities

and place of operation

12 ¥ B A &)

TXAR2017F12A31HH T EMB A
AI(BHAEARAR)IE

Particulars of

issued share capital

Interest held

NEEB S AR L 1t 26 TEXBREE BRITRAFE iR
TK Group International BVI Trading of plastic products 50,000 ordinary shares of *100%
(Hong Kong) Limited and molds/HK 1 USD each
RISEER(EB)ERAR  HEBEXES BRRARELE S H% 50,000FREE1ETHLBR *100%
TK International (BVI) Limited BVI Trading of plastic products 100 ordinary shares of 100%
and molds/PRC 1 USD each
RERUHS BRYGREEE S, /FE 100REFREEI1ETHLER 100%
TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
Limited products/PRC
RIZBEREMNERLE  FE RERRAL HE E#E 710,000,000/ 7T 100%
TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid in capital of HK$132,000,000 100%
RIRECRINERRA e EASUE/HE E ¥ 7132,000,0007 T 100%
YD Mold (Shenzhen) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
HEREACRIDERAR HE BEAZE HE EHUA710,000,000 T 100%
TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of HK$166,000,000 100%
Limited products/PRC
RIBANFECRIDERRE HE BEBREL HE H#£75166,000,00075 7T 100%
TK Mold Germany GmbH Germany Fabrication of mold/ Paid in capital of EUR25,600 100%
Germany
e EARE 1EE E & R25,600807T 100%

*

Holdings Limited.

Shares held directly by the Company and formerly known as TK Industrial

*  ARBEEFERMEAEATK Industrial

Holdings Limited °

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 1% - BMERRE

Furniture,
fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Motor Construction
Improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HEME RE - RER
#E  BERES ERE bt ERIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHT THT TR TR
Year ended HZE2016%F
31 December 2016 12A3181LFE
Opening net book amount  EHHEEFE 33,585 260,020 7,000 5,049 38,497 344,151
Currency translation BRESE
differences (910) (10,504) (168) (47) (1,924) (13,553)
Additions NE = = 4,258 — 103,433 107,691
Transfer B 49,212 71,709 — — (120,921) —
Disposals RBE 7 (3,883) (8) — — (3,898)
Depreciation bk (15,912) (51,356) (3,582) (1,141) = (71,991)
Closing net book amount FREDFE 65,968 265,986 7,500 3,861 19,085 362,400
At 31 December 2016 M2016%12 /4318
Cost B 108,832 549,302 34,158 6,171 19,085 717,548
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (42,864) (283,316) (26,658) (2,310) = (355,148)
Net book amount REFE 65,968 265,986 7,500 3,861 19,085 362,400
Year ended 220178
31 December 2017 12A31HLEFE
Opening net book amount ~ F#1EREFE 65,968 265,986 7,500 3,861 19,085 362,400
Currency translation ERESE
differences 3,039 12,942 346 38 928 17,293
Additions NE — — 5,079 — 119,568 124,647
Transfer B 6,819 115,803 — — (122,622) —
Disposals (Note 29(b)) RE(H##29(b)) (477) (4,416) (126) (11) = (5,030)
Depreciation nE (19,684) (58,826) (3,962) (1,141) — (83,613)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 55,665 331,489 8,837 2,747 16,959 415,697
At 31 December 2017 M2017412A31R
Cost AR 116,853 683,549 37,076 6,087 16,959 860,524
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (61,188) (352,060) (28,239) (3,340) — (444,827)
Net book amount REFE 55,665 331,489 8,837 2,747 16,959 415,697
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories
in the profit or loss:

13 Y% - BMERRZRE @)

FrE M ABRN TR :

B R Mo ()

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Cost of sales SHE RN 55,733
Administrative expenses ITEFEX 16,049
Selling expenses HEMX 209
M
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 B EE
Contractual
Computer customer
software relationships Goodwill Total
&8
BB EFBE&Z 5k #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAET FHET FHET
Year ended BZ2016F
31 December 2016 12B31HILEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 9,514 477 794 10,785
Currency translation differences [E ¥ =48 (329) (12) (25) (366)
Additions NE 4,020 — — 4,020
Amortisation charge i3 gl (3,124) (280) — (3,404)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 10,081 185 769 11,035
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12831H
Cost B AR 19,923 832 769 21,524
Accumulated amortisation S (9,842) (647) = (10,489)
Net book amount BRERE 10,081 185 769 11,035
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B R SR Yt (A8

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

14 B EE (@)

Contractual
Computer customer
software relationships Goodwill Total
A
=
E K& s EFEBE weE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHET FHET FHET
Year ended BZ20175F

31 December 2017 12A31HLEE
Opening net book amount FHRMFE 10,081 185 769 11,035
Currency translation differences [& i, Z=%8 457 14 105 576
Additions INE 4,481 — — 4,481
Disposal RE (16) — — (16)
Amortisation charge BET L (3,753) (199) — (3,952)
Closing net book amount FRIEEEE 11,250 — 874 12,124

At 31 December 2017 720175128318
Cost [B#N 27,980 945 874 29,799
Accumulated amortisation ESE 3 (16,730) (945) — (17,675)
Net book amount BREFE 11,250 — 874 12,124

Amortisation charges were included in the following categories BT Bt AR T 5ER -
in profit or loss:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TET
Administrative expenses TR 3,124
Selling expenses HERX 280

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 100% equity interest in
TK Mold Germany GmbH in 2014.

The recoverable amount of the CGU related to TK Mold
Germany GmbH is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts prepared by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

B R Mo ()

14 B EE (@)

798 2014 4 W BE TK Mold Germany
GmbH&I100 % A& 7 i 2 i 2 A o

ARBITK Mold Germany GmbHEIR & E
EB AT E SRR E R EE
EAABE - ZAERBEEEELD
RERFHMMBMEER - FRHATR
SRERA - HBARLTFHRANRERE
ToE AT Rl M)l 55 R SR T -

ARG EEABEENTIZRERMOT

2017 2016

Net book value (HK$'000) REFE(TAET)
Net profit margin (%) (%)
Revenue growth rate (%) WA R (%)
Discount rate (%) ALER 2 (%)

769
8%
2%
16%

The directors of the Company consider that no impairment
charge was required after performing the impairment
assessment for the year (2016: nil).

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower
than management’s estimates as at 31 December 2017, the
Group would still have recognised no impairment loss on the
goodwill.

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December 2017,
the Group would still have recognised no impairment loss on
the goodwill.

RERETRENRE  ARFEER
BOATRRERE(20164F « &) -

MG AR R S REBRETIEEN20174F
12 A31HHEEHER10% » NEBIE
DA BERREEIE -

HEBLER R R20175F12 A31 B#EM2% -
AEBDE LA EBERRBERIE -

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 REHETWEMIT A
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRRNEE
Loans and receivables: BRI
Trade and other receivables (excluding SR EMEWRGRIE(CTEE
prepayments and tax recoverable) FEfFRIE R e Y El R IE ) 299,195 211,399
Restricted cash SRHIIR S 9,412 26,476
Deposits for bank borrowings RITEENERE - 90,766
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBESEEY 540,815 381,310
709,951
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEABRRAR
Liabilities measured at amortised cost: REHKATTECBE
Trade and other payables (excluding B NHMEMNFKIE(TEIE
non-financial liabilities) FematE) 292,060 242,252
Bank borrowings RITEE 97,915 199,294
441,546
16 INVENTORIES 16 &
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials R 17,337
Work in progress ESET 189,478
Finished goods RIEY ok 64,071
270,886
Less: allowance for impairment B ORE R (6,498)
305,468 264,388
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16 INVENTORIES (Continued) 16 FE (#)
The movements of allowance for impairment are analysed as WEBEESOTOT
follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of the year F17 14,152
Currency translation difference PE 5 = %8 (462)
Reversal of inventory obsolescence [REFEE T (7,192)
At end of the year FR 6,498
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales for the year FAFRAEERARAZEFERK K A
was HK$1,218,367,000 (2016: HK$1,152,431,000). 1,218,367,00078 7T (20164F : 1,152,431,000
&IT) °
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ES R HMERFIE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables = AE e 213,079
Less: allowance for impairment B ORERE (6,807)
Trade receivables, net B EWRIBEEE 292,056 206,272
Export tax refund receivables DR R UM SR IR 20,968 16,883
Prepayments and deposits BNRIEN RS 19,363 17,632
Value-added tax recoverable AU B (E T 7,772 7,650
Advances to employees REBER 4,521 4,127
Others Hth 2,618 1,000
347,298 253,564
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B R R o ()

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17 & 5 & H b e W skIE (@)
(a) The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are (a) BZENZBEmMMBEN T EK
denominated in the following currencies: A :
2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
usb E7T 222,999 159,172
RMB AR 52,283 22,512
EUR B 16,012 27,565
HK$ BT 6,684 3,830
297,978 213,079
(b) The credit period granted to customers is generally (b) RFEFHEEHBEEN TI0E0
between 30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade AzM - ESEKFIBEEE B H
receivables from the date of sales is as follows: REHEREROITAT ¢
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Less than 3 months =EAKA 285,685 202,283
More than 3 months but not BE=—EABTBE—F
exceeding 1 year 12,293 10,220
More than 1 year —F A — 576
297,978 213,079
The Group's sales are made to various customers. While AEEMNHEEDRATRZEEEL -
there is concentration of credit risk within a few major BEAEERBREFRETEZIER
customers, these customers are reputable and with good F EZERFEEREIHER
track record. HREERER o
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cContinued) 17 E 5 & H b FE W IE (%)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
As at 31 December 2017, no trade receivables (2016: nil) R2017F12A31H  MMEE S EWK
were past due but not impaired. FIEEEHERRME(2016%F - &) o
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$5,922,000 R2017F12A31H » E S EKFIE
(2016: HK$6,807,000), were impaired and covered by 5,922,000/t (20164F : 6,807,000
allowance. BT BIRMEL B e HBE -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Less than 3 months =EAUA 3,683
More than 3 months but not EE=EAENEE —F
exceeding 1 year 2,648
More than 1 year —FpAE 576
6,807
(c) Allowance for impairment of trade receivables (c) BEZ WG IERERE
The movements on the allowance for impairment of trade B RBGRIEREREESNT
receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
At beginning of the year £ 6,807 3,735
Allowance for impairment VIR 13,869 11,865
Reversal of allowance for impairment 5 {&E & #5# 0 (14,754) (8,793)
At end of the year FR 6,807
The creation and release of allowance for impairment i LD 2 RERED T AS G
have been included in administrative expenses in the TEWBRANZITHRES ©

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR
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B R SR Yt (A8

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cContinued)

(c) Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were
primarily denominated in USD and EUR and the fair values
of trade and other receivables approximate their carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk of trade and other receivables
was the carrying amount of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group did not hold any collateral as
security for these receivables.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain past due and impaired assets.

18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

17 B 5 & H 1t FE WK TH (3
(c) BZBWFERERE @)

M2017F %2016% 128318 » E 5
FEMEBWREZ REBEEZUE
TR ITETE - MBS &k H A4 g
REZ AR EEEEMERS

R2017F & 2016F12A31H + K&
EZESREMERFENRAEE
[B\f% A bl & 48 Bl B MR SR IE 2 BRTE
B o A& B IR % F EWGRIER
BEMER IR -

B 5 K E A e YR IR A Y H 4R
TEREEIHEERENEE -

18 AHHETHEE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

333,706 221,318
(333,706) (221,318)

Beginning of the year F1)
Additions NE
Disposals RE
End of the year FR

.

The available-for-sale financial assets represent investments in
wealth management products managed by high credit quality
commercial banks in the PRC with expected return range from
3.2% t0 4.8% (2016: 2.8% to 3.4%) per annum and will mature

within one year.
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 BERBEESEEY
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances P& NMIB1THES 550,227 407,786
Restricted cash ZRRHEE (9,412) (26,476)
540,815 381,310
As at 31 December 2017, restricted cash mainly represented R2017F12A31H » SRFIREES4E
restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for issue of BEEE O RM B2 D ER R R IRITRE
guarantee letter for the import of raw materials. BIERBERZB TR
The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to ReRReEBYHNAAEREREE
their carrying amount and represent maximum exposure to HE  BRAREAXEERR -
credit risk.
20 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 20 BRAK B0 %E
Ordinary shares ZER 2017 2016 2017 2016
Share Share
Shares Shares capital capital
gl B [N [N
(thousands) (thousands) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(FR) (F82) (F&x) (F3&m)

Issued and fully paid BEITRER

833,260 826,600 83,326 82,660
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B R SR Yt (A8

20 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

(Continued)

(a) Movement in issued shares is as follows:

20 AR B4 RE ®E)

(a) BEEITROEBMOT :

21

Number of Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
ROBEHE ZER AR {E wmat
(thousands) (HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(FR) (F%T) (F&T) (F&T)
At 1 January 2016 and  A20165F1H1B R
31 December 2016 2016%F12A31H 826,600 82,660 237,902 320,562
Proceeds from shares RIT{E R R
issued upon exercise of BTN EY
share options (i) FriS R I (i) 6,660 666 10,057 10,723
Transfer from other reserve WT{E R #E%
upon exercise of share HEAHEM
options (ii) ) — — 3,334 3,334
Balance at R20175
31 December 2017 12A318 M4 833,260 83,326 251,293 334,619

(i)  Employee share option scheme: options exercised during the year
resulted in 6,660,000 shares being issued, with exercise proceeds of
HK$10,723,000.

(i) Upon exercise of share options, share options reserve amounting to
HK$3,334,000 was transferred to share premium.

(b) All shares issued rank pari passu with each other.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 29 December 2014, options over 6,660,000 shares were
granted to three directors of the Company at the exercise price
of HK$1.61 per share with no vesting condition. The exercise
price of the granted options was equal to the market price of
the shares on the date of the grant. The options are exercisable
within three years from the grant date. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in
cash.

The 6,660,000 granted options were exercised during the
year. The related weighted average share price at the time of
exercise was HKD3.17 each per share.
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(i) EEBRETS : FRITEBRESEE
176,660,000 88 15 + HITEMBERIEA
10,723,000/ 7T ©

(i) AITEEEEAER » 3,334,000 7T 2 FEAR
EFEHDEREROEE -

(b) FiEEBITRABEULTERSHE -
21 ARG RER 2K

M2014F12 A298 » AR FHRITFEES
EIRD161BTRAARARA=ZZEERT
AR A ££6,660,0000% J& 15 1Y 42 53 & 15
HrBRE ERTEREZITEER
BONRBEHBHEBZTEESE - §H
BRETEREAPR=ZFRITE - &
SEVELENETETUAR B DK
HEEBERRRE -

2% 1 #16,660,00017 B ik i 2 R ATT
fF - FTERNBEENETORELTR
1331787 ©



22 RETAINED EARNINGS

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

22 REREF

At 1 January

Profit for the year

Dividends paid

Transfer to statutory reserves

2017
HK$'000

FET

M1A1H 370,215
F A5 A 301,833
B E (124,323)
RS TE R (9,292)

2016
HK$'000
TAT

269,049
205,698
(90,926)
(13,6006)

370,215

At 31 December M12HA31H
23 OTHER RESERVES 23 Hittf# &

Currency

Statutory Share option translation
reserves reserves reserve Total
EERE BRERE fE Nk E #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2016 ®2016%E181H 33,751 3,334 (21,195) 15,890
Transfer to statutory reserves [ER e = A 13,606 — — 13,606
Currency translation differences [E 4 Z=%8 — — (35,263) (35,263)
At 31 December 2016 2016128318 47,357 3,334 (56,458) (5,767)
At 1 January 2017 ®2017%F181H8 47,357 3,334 (56,458) (5,767)
Transfer to statutory reserves (a) % £ & (a) 9,292 = = 9,292
Share option reserves (b) BERERED) — (3,334) — (3,334)
Currency translation differences [&E 4 =48 — — 38,275 38,275
At 31 December 2017 #2017%12831H 56,649 — (18,183) 38,466
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23 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(a) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make
appropriation of not less than 10% of its net income after
taxes to legal reserve. Further appropriation is optional
when the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more
of its registered capital. Upon approval from the board of
directors, the statutory reserves can be used to offset
accumulated losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

(b) Share option reserves

Upon exercise of share options, share options reserve
amounting to HK$3,334,000 was transferred to share

premium.

23 HitbfRE @)
(a) SEERHE

REFBEBBEERER  A&E
B B BT /B B FE R EL B AR F IR
TOR10% BIEATE R - 8 Rt
AERBES EFMEAR0% K
AL ATETTRERGE—T&
e REZQIER  EERMET
AREHASENTERBARZ
RETEE -

0

(b) BBIRERE

RITERERRE% » 3,334,000 L2
BREREEDERERMEE -

24 BORROWINGS 24 88
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Non-current JERNER
Bank borrowings RITEE
— unsecured — fEI I 95,220 55,761
Less: current portion of non-current B JERNEREE ZmEhE
borrowings (30,010) (21,451)
34,310
Current BN HA
Bank borrowings RITIEE
— unsecured — IR 64,576
— secured (a) — B (a) 78,957
Total short-term bank borrowings SHIRTTIE E R 143,533
Current portion of non-current borrowings JEENERE & 2 8N ZB5H 21,451
164,984
Total borrowings BEEH#EE 97,915 199,294
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24 BORROWINGS (cContinued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Mo ()

24 BE @)

(a) As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not hold secured (a) M2017F12A31H » KREET &
bank borrowings (2016: bank borrowings amounting to BEEEWIETEE(2016F : iR
HK$78,957,000 were secured over bank deposits of 1T f& 878,957,000/ 7T LASR 1T 1 =X

HK$90,766,000).

90,766,000/ T ) -

(b) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated (o) (EERREER FIIEHEE -

in the following currencies:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 120,337
EUR BT 78,957
97,915 199,294
(c) The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate changes (c) REEBERHHE  BEEEHHF
and the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet SRR EEHVEFH TE BB
dates are as follows: T

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Borrowings at floating rates HFEREEE
6 months or less 61E A st AR 199,294

(d) The borrowings are repayable as follows: (d) FEEERATHRAER

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 year 1FR 32,705 164,984
Between 1 and 2 years =24 30,430 19,810
Between 2 and 5 years 2855 34,780 14,500
199,294

RT&EE (R ARAR 2 —tFFR
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24 BORROWINGS (Continued) 24 58 @)
(e) The effective weighted average interest rates at the (e) REERBBRBHMER INEFH
balance sheet dates are as follows: FlEET -
2017 2016
Bank borrowings denominated in: Y EBETENRITEE
HK$ BT 2.13%
EUR BT 0.48%
(f) The carrying amounts and fair value of non-current () FEENEAEEMREERAREBELT ¢
borrowings are as follows:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amounts BREE 34,310
Fair value (level 2) NAE(FE2E) 34,310
Weighted average discount rate used A5 B IIHE T
for fair value (%) ALIR % (%) 2.13%
25 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT 25 BT/ Bh IR FE WX A
GRANTS
The amount represented various subsidies granted by and BB RETHEMBRNKER D LG
received from local government authorities in the PRC. The THZIEME) o BUNTHBNEE W A&
movements in deferred income on government grants are as AT
follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Opening balance as at 1 January M ATBMEIES =
Receipt of grants WEIEB & 16,952
Recognised in the profit or loss RIBRER (9,436)
Currency translation differences MEHZER =
Closing balance as at 31 December 12 A31 B K EIER a5 81 7,516
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B M5 R Y ot (A8

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 EZ R EMENFIE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Trade payables =) NE 264,104 211,355
Deposits received from customers BlEFES 179,702 163,446
Wages and staff welfare benefits payable J[EfNTE RIEEREF 103,816 81,397
Accrual for expenses and other payables &5 & H (< 2B
(Note (a)) (Ktat(a)) 27,956 30,897
Other taxes payable H AR FLIE 7,011 6,926
582,589 494,021
(a) The amount mainly represented accruals for commission (a) ZRETEREMAEREERBAX
and professional sevice expenses. FEFTER -
(b) Trade payables were denominated in the following (b) BHEMARBATIEMEE -
currencies:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
RMB AR 218,451 161,567
UsSb xE7T 36,703 38,321
HK$ BIT 7,390 9,020
EUR BT 1,560 1,686
JPY H — 761
211,355
The carrying amounts of accrued expenses and other JEEHBI Y R H i E M AW R (E

payables were primary denominated in RMB. TEPARKEEHE o
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26 B 5 K& HthFE+ 7RIE ()

(c) The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

(c) BSEMNRENRESFTAOT :

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
0 - 90 days 0&90H 207,554 164,392
91 - 120 days 91&120H 31,949 27,187
121 — 365 days 1212365H 16,056 10,207
Over 365 days HBiE365H 8,545 9,569
264,104 211,368
27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 27 EEFRBH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax
relates to the same taxation authority. The analysis of deferred

tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

A EE AT ERNAGANEAHEEER
BUEAFRITH B EIS - WAR —FISHE
B2 EEMEH - AgRIERTERE
MEERABE EBEEHREEERBESD
Hran T

2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Before offsetting IKEH AT
Deferred income tax assets: BEFBREE
— to be recovered after more than — BB 2@ A% I
12 months 2,175
— to be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Rk E 1,357
3,632
Deferred income tax liabilities: ELEFSHEE
— to be settled after more than — BRBE12EABEE
12 months — (55)
— to be settled within 12 months — B 12B A REE (10,490) (10,661)
(10,490) (10,716)
After offsetting K812
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFTSFHAE (7,184)
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27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities were offset, where they are in
the same entity, to the extent of HK$2,796,000 (31 December

2016: HK$3,5632,000).

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

are as follows:

27 EIEFTIBH (@)

MR2017%F12A8318 ° RIERIEENET
FEMEERELEMSHAEEHEIR

$52,796,000/8 7L (2016412 A31H8 :
3,532,000/ 7T) °

EEFREHEERABNESNT ¢

Deferred
Accelerated income on
tax Accrued government
Deferred income tax assets depreciation expenses grants Total
nEBIE BUR®EE
ELERBHREE nE EitRx EZEWRA wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET THET
As at 1 January 2016 R2016%F1A1H 795 3,241 — 4,036
Currency translation differences  [& 4 Z=%8 (41) (117) (22) (180)
Recognised in profit or loss RIBR R 294 (1,767) 1,149 (324)
As at 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H 1,048 1,357 1,127 3,632
As at 1 January 2017 20171 A18
Currency translation differences [& X Z %A
Recognised in profit or loss PMERER

As at 31 December 2017

2017412 A31H

RT&EE (R ARAR 2 —tFFR

2,796
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27 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

27 EIEFTIBH ()

Revaluation

surplus in

related to

Withholding business
Deferred income tax liabilities income tax combination Total

B EEKS4HEE
EEREHEE Frsst ZEMBE wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2016 M2016F1A1H (10,661) (141) (10,802)
Currency translation differences [E X =% — 8 8
Recognised in profit or loss NIERHER — 78 78
As at 31 December 2016 720165124318 (10,661) (55) (10,716)
As at 1 January 2017 R201761 818 (10,661) (10,716)
Currency translation differences [EX =% - (34)
Recognised in profit or loss NEEER 260
As at 31 December 2017 20176 12A31H (10,490) (10,490)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 December 2017, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses amounting to
HK$13,141,000 (31 December 2016: HK$12,030,000) as its
realisation is uncertain. Such tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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B R PR FE SR B v M) BIR T 4 2 BLIR RS
BRERANER - 2017128318 » K&
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28 DIVIDENDS 28 IR E
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interim dividend paid of HK$0.05 BRI BA0.057 7T
(2016 Interim: HK$0.04) (20165 8 : 0.0477T)
per ordinary share IR A R HRAR B 41,663 33,064
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.12 REREBR0.12ET
(2016: HK$0.10) per ordinary share (20164 : 0.10%7T)
IR 32 3 AR HRRR R, 82,660
141,654 115,724
The dividends paid in 2017 and 2016 were HK$124,323,000 M2017F R2016 F R AR E 7 5l A&
(HK$0.15 per share) and HK$90,926,000 (HK$0.11 per share) 124,323,000 7T (TR AR5 0.1578 7T )
respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 190,926,000 ;T (B R AR 5 0.11 %
December 2017 of HK$0.12 per share, amounting to a total ) e ARBBRERERREAFAE £
of approximately HK$99,991,000, is to be proposed at the BRRNEE2017F12A831BIEFE
forthcoming annual general meeting. ZARHKEEFRR0.12B T - IRBARTEL

99,991,000/ 7T °

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR
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29 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 S EESRERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (a) B FAT15 %A% I B £
generated from operations: HER -
2017
HK$'000
FExT
Profit before income tax & BT 15 554 Bl Vs 7 349,507
Adjustments for: FEE -
Finance expenses (Note 9) BB R (A7E9) 1,981
Interest income (Note 9) FEBWA(B17E9) (6,615)
Depreciation of property, plant and W BMERRETE
equipment (Note 13) (H1a£13) 83,613
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEHIE(MT14)
(Note 14) 3,952
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEMRERZ
plant and equipment (Note 6) (Hiz6) (790)
Reversal of inventory obsolescence PREFERR (MiF7)
(Note 7) (3,498)
Allowance for account receivables FEUBR B (AL 7)
(Note 7) 1,220
Changes in working capital: LIEESEE
Inventories T8 (37,977)
Restricted cash ZRHIR e 17,064
Trade and other receivables B 5 K Hith fE U FRIE (93,034)
Trade and other payables B 5 K H Ath FEA /IR 110,060
Cash generated from operations KEMSRE 425,483
(b) In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds (b) REHBEERERNA

from disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

2017
HK$'000
FET
Net book amount disposed BHEREFE
Gain on disposal (Note 6) hE WS (fE6)
Proceeds from disposal & FTSFUB
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ERRHREZ

2016
HK$'000

TAT
229,017

3,230
(5,5633)

71,991
3,404
(772)
(7,192)
3,072
(2,332)
(25,300)

(12,090)
8,861

266,356

CHEWE

= R RESTARE

2016
HK$'000
s E

3,898
772

4,670



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Net assets reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net asset and the
movements in net asset for each of the periods presented.

B R Mo ()

29 SRS RERM T @)

(c) BEFEHK

AGHTIE L5 MMEEFERE
EFERBZH -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Cash and cash equivalents HehIReFEY 540,815 381,310
Borrowings — repayable within BE — AR —FRNEE
one year (32,705) (164,984)
Borrowings — repayable after one year {88 — AR —F %R EE (65,210) (34,310)
Net assets BAEFE 442,900 182,016
Cash and cash equivalents HehIReFEY 540,815 381,310
Gross debt — variable interest rates & — ¥ FI= (97,915) (199,294)
Net assets BEZE 442,900 182,016
Other assets Liabilities from financing
activities
Hit& = REMETHNES
Borrowings  Borrowings
Cash and cash due within due after
Net assets equivalents 1 year 1 year Total
BeR MER MER
EERE ReZEY FHMEE FHMEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2016 R20165F181H 319,951 (137,288) (68,051) 114,612
Cash flows Rene 62,489 (27,696) 33,741 68,5634
Foreign exchange SN S
adjustments (1,130) = = (1,130)
As at 31 December 2016 42016512531 H 381,310 (164,984) (34,310) 182,016
Cash flows Heng 158,724 132,279 (30,900) 260,103
Foreign exchange AN SR
adjustments 781 — — 781
As at 31 December 2017 420175125318 540,815 (32,705) (65,210) 442,900
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30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2016: nil).

31 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

30 FAREE

MN2017412A31H » REBEWEL [ E
A ARBE(20165F12H318 - &) -

31 &iE

(a) EAEIE

AEERA NEAESE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx TAET

Acquisitions of plant and equipment: HBEEmRE LM -
— Contracted but not provided for — BEIAVEREE

41,683

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

(b) HEHERRE

AEBEREAAIHELEHEH =
HEWE - AEER TR HELE
MEBET R EKERERA
EET

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Not later than one year —F R
— to related companies — BEE QA 49,044 38,092
— to third parties —F=5 3,517 1,637
39,629
Later than one year and —FRERAFR
not later than five years
— to third parties — =5 o
57,858 39,629
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Names and relationship

The following companies and individuals were related
parties of the Group that had transactions or balances with

B R Mo ()

32 MELRS
(a) BERER

UTREIMERMALTEREZE2017
F1I2ANBUEFEEAEBRER S

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017: RAERH N EEREET
Name of the related party Relationship with the Group
BELER HEASEZBE
TK Technology Holdings Ltd. An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
RIMKEEARAA BRERREHNE R
TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
BRI ORINBRAE RERREHNER

(b) Transactions with related parties during the year

Other than the related party transactions disclosed in Note
21 and 34, the following transactions with related parties

(b) FRHEBEL 25

BRETFE21 M4 REMRET X 5
Sh - AREBERFRERETETH

were undertaken by the Group during the year. RN
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Operating lease expenses paid B EHEEA
(Note (i)) (Bt at() 37,880 38,591
Note: M -
(i) The amounts represented rental expenses for land and buildings for (i) FZAIEIE2017F MR IEREBFTRA
factory and office purposes paid to TK Technology Holdings Ltd. and AIRFIFHE CRI) AR R A]S T ELT
TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. in 2017 (2016: Rental expenses for BRI R ZEFF ) T RIETFHIHE %
land and buildings for factory and office purposes were paid to TK (2016%F : MR TFIFEEEBFRA A RE
Technology Holdings Ltd. and TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd.). All ST CRIN) B R 2 B AT E T R A A
rental expenses were determined with reference to independent ERAEH LR EFHELHAZ) IH

property valuation.

HEFHXG2RBTYEIGEETE -

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Key management personnel compensation

The compensations paid or payable to key management
personnel for employee services are shown below:

2 BEHIRS @)

(c)

FTEEEAESHMH

BEEBRBENIEBNETEZEEA
B2 wmmEsmT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - e kit

Pension costs — defined contribution R{KERA — FEREMRET

plans

s

40,497 30,600

(d) Indemnity

Each of Ultimate Shareholders jointly and severally has
undertaken to indemnify and keep each of the Group's
companies fully indemnified against all claims and losses
suffered or incurred by any company of the Group as a
result of or in connection with, amongst others, the use of
the land and buildings owned by certain related companies
by any company of the Group as tenants, as these related
companies have not obtained the approval from the
relevant authorities in relation to the lease arrangements of
such land and buildings.
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(d)

166 161
40,663 30,761
e

BEREBRE B C KR RE R AH
MRS R (AP EE)ERAAKE
EAARMNETHEARBEREZL
whEsEy (ERET)MTAEE
EAARREAEENMBERER
BRAASESKERBRERME
FRELGFEERE RESZE
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT BARAAEEAEBRNRRAFEED
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

M12H318
2017 2016
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
it FEx FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB RAZ®RE 221,055 221,055
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT /8~ B FA 389,973 367,839
Other receivables Hith e U IE 24 24
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEZED 584 431
Total current assets MENVE EARTE 390,581 368,294
Total assets BEE 611,636 589,349
Equity and liabilities EakBaE

Equity attributable to owners AATEE AEGER
of the company

Share capital R A 83,326 82,660
Share premium & 175 (B 425,815 412,424
Other reserves HGEE (a) — 3,334
Retained earnings {REBSH T (a) 102,344 90,528
Total equity e 611,485 588,946
Liabilities afE

Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables H b e 5RIE 403
Total liabilities HwEE 403
Total equity and liabilities EEkaEAEE 611,636 589,349
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

BAAAEERBRRMEEEDH 0

204

(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) RABFEEEE

Retained Other

earnings reserves

HRERF Hih 1B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHIT FHT

At 1 January 2016 ®2016%F1 818 62,959 3,334

Profit for the year F = 118,495 =

Dividends % & (90,926) —

At 31 December 2016 M201612H31H 90,528 3,334

At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1 818 90,528 3,334

Profit for the year F N A 136,139 —
Transfer to share premium upon RITERBREREES

exercise of share options (i) f& 19 m & (i) — (3,334)

Dividends % & (124,323) o

At 31 December 2017 720175128318 102,344 —

(i) Upon exercise of share options, share options reserve amounting to

HK$3,334,000 was transferred to share premium.
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS M ESFARER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBRFEITHAESME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive SEERNTETHRAENHNE D
is set out below: mr
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BZE2017F128318LFE :
Employer's

contribution
Discretionary  to retirement

Name Fees Salary bonus hbenefit scheme Total
EZHEK
#% e e Wi BRELR &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thr THr THER TiEr
Executive Directors HTESE
Mr. Li Pui Leung FHREE
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i) SEIEA()
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu FRBEE
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy BETHT
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung RRLE
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong LEREE
14,767
(i) Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer. () PREAEENREEHITE °
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(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R SR Yt (A8

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

34 EFSEFNRERS @

(a) EBERFETHRAEME (8

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE -

Employer's
contribution
Discretionary 1o retirement
Name Fees Salary bonus benefit scheme Total
BEMERR
i2 ik i RERL  BHEEER ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiET FHET TR TiEx TEL
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Li Pui Leung THRELE — 2,470 3,044 18 5,532
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael ) SREI%4() — 2,206 2,120 18 4,344
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBLE — 1,638 1,245 18 2,901
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REELE = 1,777 1,539 18 3,334
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ELTET 278 — - — 278
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung RARLE 278 — - - 278
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BERLE 278 - - - 278
834 8,091 7,948 72 16,945
(i) Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer. (i)  BEAFENBEENT
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(b) There was no directors’ retirement benefits, directors’
termination benefits, consideration provided to third
parties for making available directors’ services and no
loans, quasi-loans or other dealings entered into by
the Group in favour of any directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
during the year (2016: Nil).

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved for contracts amongst group companies and as
disclosed in Note 32, there was no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

B R Mo ()

34 EEFA R ER )

(b) £ - BERRHEERE M @E
ZHRFERNESRAREN  EF
RAERBEN R EARAERE
Z EENXEVWIERBERR
BEBANER BEERIAEH
PETS 2 R 5 (20165 « &) »

(c) EERNRE - ZHRESYMNEKX

e

BEBARBAEAEHRMEI2MEE
I RERIFAREMAERE - SEF
EARRAIMFIVHASEXEMEBE
K BARREZERETEERLHER
BEAERNRS - ZHHAEH -

RTIEE (R BRI 2 —LFFR
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HILEE

2013 2014
HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT

2015 2016 2017
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT FEx

Revenue WA 1,197,862 1,338,920

1,606,205 1,626,611 pmE:IdvR:Ll)

Net profit for the Year VIN/NEIEZ DN

attributable to the FE{EFR
owners of the Company  #E7) 121,348 153,923 187,088 205,698
As at 31 December
M12A831H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TFAT FAT FET TFExT
Total assets wEE 955,456 1,137,434 1,300,219 1,402,093 | | Ef 0/
Total liabilities FER=NE 585,190 610,709 694,718 717,083 727,089
Total equity R BRE 370,266 526,725 605,501 685,010 m
Notes: Ht
1. The consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 31 December 1. AREBEHFE2016FK2017F12H31H I FEEFa

2016 and 2017 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and 2017 are set out on pages 125 to 127 of this annual report.

2. The consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 31 December 2.
2013, 2014 and 2015 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as
at 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 are set out in the 2013, 2014 and 2015
annual report of the Group.

3. The above summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had 3.
been in existence throughout these financial years.
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BB AR AREBR2016FK20174612H31 A
BHBERBEHRAFIREIZEAE127H °

REFEF20134F + 20144F X 2015F 1231 H 1F
FEEFHEHEBURIEBR2013F « 2014F
K2016F12A31 HAE HEER B EHR KX EH
20134 - 20144 R 2015F FHH{A °
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